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-Trans/ation-
March 28, 2022
Subject . Invitation to the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders through electronic meeting (E-AGM)
To : The shareholders of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Enclosures

1. Objectives and rationale of the Board of Directors’ opinions to facilitate shareholders’
considerations

2. Financial Summary from the 2021 Annual Report

3. Profiles of the nominated candidates to replace directors who retired by rotation and the
qualification of the Company’s independent director (3.1 - 3.6)

4. Details of the independent directors proposed as proxy holders (in the event that an independent
director is appointed as a proxy holder)

5. The Company’s Articles of Association concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

6. Documents and evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining the 2022 AGM
through Electronic Media (E-AGM) and procedure for proxy granting, registration and voting.

7. Procedures chart for Identity proofing and attend the 2022 AGM through Electronic Media
(E-AGM)

8. Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2022 AGM via Electronic Media (E-AGM)

9. QR Code Downloading Procedures for the annual registration statement / the 2021 Annual
Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

10. Three types of Proxy Forms (Form A, B, and C), according to the announcement of Department
of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550 and as amended and P.O. Box
Envelope (in case of returning the form by post)

11. Registration Form for attending the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders through
Electronic Media (E-AGM)

=  Form of the Meeting notification with QR code for downloading meeting documents

According to the COVID-19 outbreak situation across many areas in Thailand at present, the
government has asked for cooperation from the private sector to be cautious about organizing activities that
involve large in-person gatherings as well as to consider arranging online meetings to reduce the spread of
COVID-19. The Company has been closely monitoring the situation with the deepest concern for the safety of the
meeting attendees and its staff and is set to strictly adhere to the government’s measures to prevent and reduce
the spread of COVID-19 as mentioned.

Therefore, The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited (“the
Company”) has resolved to invite all shareholders to attend the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
(“the Meeting”) which will be convened on Thursday, April 28, 2022, at 10.00 a.m., through electronic media (E-
Meeting / E-AGM) only, in compliance with the Emergency Decree on Electronic Meeting B.E. 2563 (2020) and
other related laws and regulations, to consider the following agenda items:
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Agenda 1 To acknowledge the declaration of the 2021 operational results and the Company’s Annual Report

The Board’s opinion: The Board was deemed appropriate to report the Company’s operational results and
submit the 2021 Annual Report to the Meeting for acknowledgment.

Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for
the fiscal year ending 31 December 2021.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the Company’s Statement of Financial
Position and the Comprehensive Income Statement for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2021, which were reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee, and were duly
audited and certified by the certified public accountant.

Agenda 3 To approve the apportionment as statutory reserve fund from the 2021 operational results.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the appropriation of net profit as statutory
reserve fund at the rate of 5 percent of the net profit the year 2021 ending December
31, 2021 of separate financial statements, the company had a total net profit of Baht
127,128,167. Therefore, the Company must statutory reserve of net profit the total
amount of legal reserve is Baht 6,356,408, in order to comply with the Clause 51 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act
B.E.2535 (and as amended).

Agenda 4 To approve the dividend payment for the 2021 operational results.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed to the Meeting to approve the dividend payment for the 2021
operational results at the rate of 0.069 Baht per share to the shareholders of
2,381,250,000 shares or totaling Baht 164,306,250, equivalent to 88.65% of the
Separate's retain earnings, ending December 31, 2021. The Record Date to entitle
rightful shareholders who may receive the dividend will be on May 10, 2022 and the
payment of the dividend will be made on May 27, 2022.

The remaining dividend for the 2021 operational results will be paid at the rate of 0.069
Baht per share from the retained earnings of the 2021 Separate financial statements
which received form subsidiaries divided into (1) the dividend received from subsidiaries
at the rate of 0.025 Baht per share, which subjected to 20% corporate income tax
wherein individual shareholders shall be entitled to a Dividend Tax Credit under Section
47 bis of the Revenue Code and (2) the dividend received from subsidiaries at the rate
of 0.044 Baht per share, which are not subjected to corporate income tax payment from
business operations due to the exercise of the net loss entitled to deduct legally wherein
individual shareholders shall not be entitled to a Dividend Tax Credit under Section 47
bis of the Revenue Code.

Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the
year 2022.

The Board’s opinion: The Board (except those 5 retired directors who have conflicts of interest in this agenda)
has been carefully scrutinized, cautious to the appropriateness. This is to ensure that
the persons nominated for this time are qualified for the Company's business operation.
According to the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, therefore
resolved to proposed to the Meeting to endorse the appointment of directors who are
due to retire by rotation namely (1) Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun, (2) Mr. Piya Sosothikul,
(3) Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham, (4) Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub, and (5) Mrs.
Duangmanee Sukhum as the Company’s directors for another term. (Profiles of those
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5 candidates and the qualification of the Company’s independent director are described
in Enclosure 3.1 - 3.6).

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022,

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed that the Meeting approve the Board of Director and subcommittee’s
remuneration for the year 2022 at the amount of 15,880,000 Baht, comprising of the
monthly remuneration, the meeting allowance (being paid to a director who attends the
meeting only) and the annual bonus, according to the rules and details set forth.

Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year 2022.

The Board’s opinion: The Board proposed that the Meeting appoint EY Office Limited as the Company’s auditor
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, and that any one of the individuals below be
responsible for reviewing or audit and provide an opinion on the financial statements of the
Company, namely (1) Mr. Termphong Opanaphan CPA No0.4501 or (2) Mr. Khitsada
Lerdwana CPA No.4958 or (3) Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen CPA No.5238. In addition, the
Meeting is proposed to approve the audit fee of the Company for the year 2022 at the
amount of not exceeding 1,200,000 Baht, which is the same amount as the previous year.

Agenda 8 Other matters. (if any)

The Board’s opinion: The Board deemed it appropriate to include this agenda so as to comply with the section
105 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (as amended) specifying that
shareholders holding shares amounting not less than one-third of the total number of
paid-up shares are qualified to ask the Meeting to consider any matter other than those
set out in the invitation letter. Additionally, this agenda is also set for shareholders who
wish to ask any further questions or provide any other opinions (if any). However,
according to the Principles of Corporate Governance of Listed Company issued by Thai
Institute of Directors (IOD) and AGM Checklist of Thai Investors Association, it is not
recommended to add any other agendas that are not specified in the invitation letter to
the Meeting to approve or vote.

In this regard, the Company specifies the names of shareholders for the rights to attend and vote at
the 2022 AGM shall be recorded on March 14, 2022 (Record Date). The company would like to invite the
shareholders to attend the meeting. via electronic media at the aforementioned date and time at the same time,
which the Company will open for registration in the E-AGM system to attend the 2022 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders via electronic media (E-AGM) from 9.00 a.m. on Thursday, April 29, 2022 onwards.

The Company recommends Shareholders and/or Proxy holder to study the conditions and methods
of registration procedure, including submitting the request form to attend the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the year 2022 via electronic media (E-AGM) (according to Enclosure 11) and submit all relevant
documents that require to identity proofing for receiving individual link to attend the E-AGM and the system access
manual, together with study vote casting procedure as detailed in enclosure 6). and enclosure 7).

If any shareholder wishes to grant a proxy to another person instead of attending the Meeting in
person to vote on shareholders’ behalf. Please fill in the details and sign the Proxy Form A or Form B either.
(Enclosure 10) to be complete , foreign shareholders which appoints a custodian in Thailand to be a stock
depository and keeper, please use one of the Proxy Form A or Form B or Form C (Custodian). (Enclosure 10) with
a 20 baht stamp duty attached.
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In the event that shareholders are unable to attend the meeting , able to grant a proxy to the
Company’s independent directors (Enclosure 4) instead of attending the Meeting in person to vote on
Shareholders’ behalf according to the proxy form by sending a proxy that shows the desire to vote (Recommend
to use the Proxy Form B (Enclosure 10)). To do so, please complete the Proxy From B and give all vote
instructions, and submit it along with accompanying documents for proxy appointment in the envelope enclosed
with the Notice (No stamp needed) to the Company by April 25, 2022. (Please study the details of documents and
evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining the 2022 AGM through Electronic Media (E-AGM)
and procedure for proxy granting, registration and voting (Enclosure 6).

For shareholders to receive the greatest benefit at the Meeting and fully protect the rights as a
shareholder, should you have any queries that you would like the Company to clarify on any agenda, you can
send the questions prior to the Meeting, please sending Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2022
AGM via Electronic Media (E-AGM) to the company secretary via email: cs@onee.one by April 25, 2022 ,as
detailed in Enclosure 8.

To provide the shareholders’ convenience in accessing the above information, the entire set of
documents related to the Invitation of the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via Electronic Media
(E-AGM), together with the proxy forms and all related documents, including document download on the
Company’s website (www.theoneenterprise.com), both in Thai and English, March 28, 2022 onwards, The 2021
Annual Report (Form 56-1 One report) shall be publicized on the Company’s website prior to the meeting date,
not less than 21 days.

Please be informed accordingly.

Yours Faithfully,

(Mr. Paiboon Damrongchaitham)
Chairman of the Board

By resolution of the Board

For information regarding the Shareholders’ Meeting, please contact:
Company Secretary

Tel. (+662) 669 9712

Email: cs@onee.one
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Enclosure 1

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Objectives and rationale of the Board of Directors’ opinions
to facilitate shareholders’ considerations

Agenda 1 To acknowledge the declaration of the 2021 operational results and the Company’s Annual
Report

The report by the Board and management with respect to the Company’s business performance
for the year 2021 ended December 31, 2021 has been produced portraying the operational results of the
Company during 2021. The Board, having considered and deemed it correct and sufficient, hereby proposes
that the Meeting acknowledge the Company’s business performance during 2021 and as contained in the
annual registration statement /the 2021 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report). The shareholders can
download from the QR Code appearing on the “Form of the Meeting notification with QR code for downloading
meeting documents, which was delivered to the shareholders together with this Invitation Letter.

Required Resolution:

This agenda does not require any vote, as this is to inform the Meeting for acknowledgment.

Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for
the fiscal year ending 31 December 2021.

In accordance with Section 112 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (and as amended),
the Company has to prepare the latest Statement of Financial Position and the Income Statement as at the end
of the Company's fiscal year, to be presented and approved at the Annual General Meeting. The Company’s
Statement of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statement for the year as of December 31,
2021, had been reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee, having considered and deemed them correct,
complete and sufficient pursuant to the generally accepted accounting standards, and was duly audited and
certified by auditors from EY Office Limited, who is the auditor of the Company. Details from the Statement of
Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statement as of December 31, 2021 appears in the 2021
Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report), and a printed summary of key financial information from the 2021
Annual Report is also attached to this Invitation Letter (Enclosure 2)

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 3 To approve the apportionment as statutory reserve fund from the 2021 operational results.

According to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E.2535 (and as amended) and
the Company’s Articles of Association, Clause 51 which stated that “The Company must appropriate part of its
annual net profits to a reserve fund in an amount of not less than five (5) percent of the annual net profits with
the deduction therefrom the amount representing the accumulated loss carried forwards (if any) until this reserve
fund reaches the amount of not less than ten (10) percent of the registered capital. In addition to such reserve
fund, the board of directors may propose that the shareholders' meeting pass a resolution to allocate other
reserve funds as it is deemed to be advantage in the operation of the Company.”

At present the Company has net profit for the year 2021 ending 31 December 2021 in the
separate financial statements in the amount of Baht 127,128,167. Therefore, in order to comply with the law and
the Company’s Articles of Association, above, the Board of Director propose the Meeting to approve the
appropriation of net profit as statutory reserve fund at the rate of 5 percent of the net profit the year 2021 ending
December 31, 2021 of separate financial statements, totaling Baht 6,356,408.

Enclosure 1 Page 1/9 The One Enterprise Public Company Limited



Enclosure 1

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be
passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 4 To approve the dividend payment for the 2021 operational results.

The Company has a policy paying the dividends to shareholders at a rate of not less than 40% of
the Company’s net profit from normal operation from the Company’s consolidated financial statements (after
taxes and reserves, as required by applicable laws and as determined by the Company) However, it must not
exceed the retained earnings of the Company. that appear in the separate financial statements. However,
it must not exceed the retained earnings of the Company, that appear in the separate financial statements.
According to Section 115 of the Public Act and the Company’s Articles of Association Clause 49 which stated
that “Dividends shall not be paid out of any type of funds other than out of profit. In case the Company still has
accumulated loss, no dividends shall be paid.”

According to the Company’s performance in 2021, the company has the retain earnings after
statutory reserve fund from the 2021, ending December 31, 2021 of separate financial statements in the amount
Baht 185,336,920. The Board of Director to propose the AGM 2022 to consider and approve the dividend
payment for the 2021 operational results at the rate of 0.069 Baht per share to the shareholders of
2,381,250,000 shares or totaling Baht 164,306,250 equivalent to 88.65% of the Separate's retain earnings,
ending December 31, 2021. However, The Company cannot pay dividends in accordance with the Company's
dividend payment policy because the Company has retained earnings (after allocation of legal reserves)
according to the separate financial statements ending December 31, 2021, amounting to only Baht185,336,920.

Details of the dividend payments are shown as follows:
Details of dividend payment

Separate financial statements

Net Profits/(Loss): Million Baht 127.13
Retained Earnings/(Deficit)*: Million Baht 185.34
Earnings /(Loss) per Share: Baht 0.06

Consolidate financial statements

Net Profits/(Loss): Million Baht 828.42

Retained Earnings / (Deficit)*: Million Baht (740.63)

Earnings /(Loss) per Share: Baht 0.42
Total Dividends Payment (Baht per Share) 0.069
Number of Shares (Million Share) 2,381.25
Total Dividend Payouts (Million Baht) 164.31

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

(Separate financial statements) 88.65

Note : * the retain earnings / (Deficit) after statutory reserve fund from the
2021

- intentionally left blank -
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Enclosure 1

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

The Board of Director to propose the AGM 2022 to approve the Record Date to entitle rightful
shareholders who may receive the dividend will be on May 10, 2022 and the payment of the dividend will be
made on May 27, 2022.

The remaining dividend for the 2021 operational results will be paid at the rate of 0.069 Baht per
share from the retained earnings of the 2021 Separate financial statements which received form subsidiaries
divided into (1) the dividend received from subsidiaries at the rate of 0.025 Baht per share, which subjected to
20% corporate income tax wherein individual shareholders shall be entitled to a Dividend Tax Credit under
Section 47 bis of the Revenue Code and (2) the dividend received from subsidiaries at the rate of 0.044 Baht per
share, which are not subjected to corporate income tax payment from business operations due to the exercise of
the net loss entitled to deduct legally wherein individual shareholders shall not be entitled to a Dividend Tax
Credit under Section 47 bis of the Revenue Code.

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be passed
with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the
year 2022.

Pursuant to the Public Act and Clause 21 of the Company’s Articles of Association, which stated
that; “At every annual general meeting, one-third (1/3) of directors at that time shall retire. If the number of
directors is not a multiple of three, then the number of directors nearest to one-third (1/3) shall be retired. The
directors to retire in the first and second years after the registration of the Company shall be selected by drawing
lots. In subsequent years, the directors having held longest shall retire. The directors retiring from office may be
re-elected.”

In this regard, the Company registered its conversion to a public company on May 3, 2021,
resulting in 15 directors having equal terms. At this 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, there are 5
directors to retire in the first who selected by drawing lots from 15 directors, due to retire by rotation, namely:

Name Position in the Board Position in the Sub-Committees

1. Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun Director -None -

(Non-Executive Director)

2. Mr. Piya Sosothikul Director -None -
(Non-Executive Director)

3. Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham Director e Member of the Executive Committee
(Executive Director)

4. Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub Independent Director e Member of the Audit Committee

¢ Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

.Mrs. D kh | Di
5. Mrs. Duangmanee Sukhum ndependent Director « Member of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee
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Enclosure 1

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

With respect to the Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policy, the shareholders were given
the opportunity to nominate the names of qualified persons for being considered to be elected as directors in
advance for the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via the Company’'s website
www.theoneenterprise.com, from January 25, 2022, to February 22, 2022. However, no shareholder nominated
the qualified persons to the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “NRC”) at the Meeting No.1/2022 held on
February 23, 2022, had deliberately considered, taking into account the individual directors’ qualifications in
various aspects based on the best interest of the Company under the policy, criteria and nomination process of
the Company (Details appear in the 2021 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One report) under the heading
"7.3.Corporate Governance> 7.3.1 Committee Structure > Scope of authorities duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee > 1. Nomination” (Page. 167-172), and found that all the 5 retired
directors, namely (1) Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun, (2) Mr. Piya Sosothikul, (3) Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham, (4)
Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub, and (5) Mrs. Duangmanee Sukhum are fit to work for the Company as the directors for
another term because of their qualifications that meets the requirements of the Public Act, have qualifications
suitable for the business of the company, their knowledge, abilities, experience, vision, and working
performance including their devotion and support to the Company’s business operation in the past years.

The Board of Directors has considered proposing to Directors No. (4) Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub,
and (5) Mrs. Duangmanee Sukhum to be independent directors. Due to the qualifications consistent with the
independent director definition of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and the Company, and both of them will be able to express their opinions independently. as an
independent director and Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub as an audit committee throughout the past tenure have
performed their duties with responsibility caution and honesty, including compliance with the law relevant rules,
objectives and regulations of the Company, Board resolution as well as the resolutions of the shareholders'
meeting, in accordance with the relevant details of the definition of independent directors of the Company are
set out in Enclosure 3.6.

Therefore, the Board (except those 5 retired directors who have conflicts of interest in this
agenda), considered and scrutinized the suitability of the person who was nominated for this time have
qualifications suitable for the business of the company. In accordance with the opinion of the NRC above and
agreed with the NRC to propose the Meeting to endorse the appointment of the 5 afore mentioned candidates as
the Company’s directors. Their profiles and other supporting information and the qualification of the Company’s
independent directors who retired by rotation and the qualification of the Company’s independent director in
Enclosure 3.1 - 3.6.

Required Resolution:
A resolution for electing directors can be passed according to the method and procedure as

stated in Clause 20 of the Company’s Articles of Association (Enclosure 5) and a resolution under this agenda
can be passed with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022.

Pursuant to the Clause 33 of the Company’s Articles of Association which stated that: “The
directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration from the Company in the form of award, meeting allowance,
gratuity, bonus or benefits of other nature as considered and approved by the shareholders meeting by a vote of
not less than two-third (2/3) of the total votes of shareholders attending the meeting. The remuneration may be
fixed in a certain amount, or be specified from time to time, or be in effect until a change by a resolution of the
shareholders meeting. The directors shall also be entitled to receive per diem allowances and other fringe
benefits in accordance with the Company's regulations, the provision shall not prejudice the rights of the staff or
employees of the Company, who have been appointed as directors, to receive the remuneration or benefits as a
staff or an employee of the Company.”

For the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the NRC and the Board considered the
Board’s remuneration and the Sub-Committees’ remuneration for the year 2022 according to the Company’s the
guidelines and procedures by considering various factors in support of their determination, including the scope
of responsibilities, contributions, the work performance of the Company’s directors, business expansion,
a comparison with other companies in the same industry and similar nature of the business, as well as the report
of the 2020 Survey on Directors’ Remuneration of Listed Companies in the Stock Exchange of Thailand
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The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

conducted by Thai Institution of Directors (IOD). It was apparent that the Company’s Board of Directors’ and
Audit Committee’s remuneration was not different from the overall market average rate.

Therefore, it was deemed appropriate to propose to the Meeting to approve the Board of Directors
and Subcommittee’s remuneration for the year 2022 as follows as the followings:

= The Board of Director and The Subcommittees (it was appointed by the Board of Director) consists of:
1. The Board of Directors
2. The Audit Committee
3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4. The Executive Committee

= Remuneration of the Company's Directors and committees for the year 2022 will consist of:
1. The monthly remuneration (fixed rate )
2. The meeting allowance (fixed rate )
3. The annual bonus

= To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022 as
followings:

(A) Monetary Remuneration

It was deemed appropriate to approve the Board of Directors and Subcommittee’s remuneration
for the year 2022 namely, The Board of Directors, The Audit Committee, The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and The Executive Committee totaling at the amount of Baht
15,880,000, comprising of the monthly remuneration, the meeting allowance (being paid to
a director who attends the meeting only) and annual bonus at the not exceeding amount of
10,000,000 baht per year, according to the rules and details set forth.

(Unit: Baht/year)

Committee 2022 (Proposed) 2021

The Board of Directors

The Audit Committee

Total proposed remuneration Total remuneration not
The Nomination and not exceeding 15,880,000 Baht exceeding 11,000,000 Baht
Remuneration Committee

The Executive Committee

(B) Non-Monetary Remuneration / Other Benefits

- None -

1) The Board of Directors’ Remuneration Criteria

e Monthly Remuneration pay to the Board of Directors.

Monthly Remuneration (baht / person / month)
Committee Position
2022 (Proposed) 2021
Chairman of the Board 30,000 30,000
The Board of Directors Non-Executive Director 20,000 20,000
Executive Director - None - - None -

- intentionally left blank -
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The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

e Meeting Allowance (Being paid to a director who attends the meeting only)

Meeting Allowance (baht / person / time)
Committee Position
2022 (Proposed) 2021
Chairman of the Board 20,000 20,000
The Board of Directors Non-Executive Director 20,000 20,000
Executive Director 20,000 20,000

e  Annual Bonus

It is deemed appropriate to set the limit for the allocation of the 2022 annual bonus will be paid
not exceeding Baht 10,000,000, which is the amount that is included in the amount of the 2022 compensation for
the directors and committees for the year 2022, amounting Baht 15,880,000. Remuneration of the Board of
Directors and Sub-Committees for the year 2022, the remainder after deducting the amount of monthly
remuneration and all meeting allowances paid to the Company's Directors and Sub-Committees.

In this regard, the criteria and conditions for the allocation of the annual bonus for the year 2022
are as follows:

1. Assign the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to consider the allocation of the 2022
annual bonus.

2. The annual bonus payment is not exceeding 0.15% of the total income according to the annual
financial statements 2022, and must not exceed the limit of 10 million baht.

3. The operating results of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited group must be profitable.

4. Determine the payment of bonuses to the Board of Directors only. The allocation of the annual
bonus will be allocated according to the number of meetings of the Board of Directors only.
The Chairman of the Board will receive 1.5 times of his attendance. Other Director will receive
1 time of their attendance.

2) The Sub-Committees’ Remuneration

It was deemed appropriate to propose the Meeting to approve the Sub-Committees’ remuneration which
was appointed by the Board as follows:

e  Monthly Remuneration pays to the Audit Committee required to be paid to the Audit Committee by
paying every month which has rates as follow:

Monthly Remuneration (baht / person / month)
Committee Position
2022 (Proposed) 2021
Chawman of the Audit 10,000 10,000
Committee
The Audit Committee
Membgr of the Audit 5,000 5,000
Committee

e  Meeting Allowance (Being paid to The Subcommittee member namely, The Audit Committee, The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and The Executive Committee who attends the
meeting only)
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The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Meeting Allowance (baht/person/time)

Committee Position
2022 (Proposed) 2021
Chairman of the Audit
) 20,000 20,000
Committee
The Audit Committee
Member of the Audit Committee 20,000 20,000
Chairman of the Nomination and
. . 15,000 15,000
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee | \jember of the Nomination and
. ) 15,000 15,000
Remuneration Committee
Chairman of the Executive
10,000 10,000

Committee

Member of the Executive
Committee 10,000 10,000

The Executive Committee .
(non-Executive)

Member of the Executive
Committee -None- -None-

(Executive)

e Non-Monetary Remuneration / Other Benefits

- None -

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be passed
with a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the shareholders attending the meeting.

Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year
2022.

Pursuant to the Public Act and the Company’s Articles of Association Clause 57, shareholders are
responsible for the appointment of the Company’s auditors and its annual audit fee. Under the Notice of the
Capital Market Board No. Tor Chor. 75/2561 (No.14) Re: Rules, conditions, and procedures for information
disclosure relating to the financial condition and operating results of issuing companies on “Auditor Rotation”
whose key points can be summarized as follows: “Listed companies must ensure the rotation of its auditor. In
case the auditor has reviewed and/or audited and commented on the financial statements of the Company for
seven consecutive accounting periods, whether consecutive or not, the company will be able to appoint the
above auditor at least after the end of the next five accounting periods.”
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For the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, after due consideration by the Board, with
a consent from the Audit Committee, it was deemed appropriate to re-elect EY Office Limited (“EY”), the
Company’s auditor since 2013 (9 years) and is certified by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission,
as the auditor of the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. That was because of their
excellent working standard, independence and satisfied performance during the past years. The Meeting was
proposed to appoint any one of the individuals below to be responsible for reviewing, audit, and provide an
opinion on the financial statements of the Company:

The Company’s Auditors:

1. Mr. Termphong OpanaphanCPA No. 4501 or,
(certified in the Company’s financial statements in 2016 - 2021 (6 years))

2. Mr. Khitsada Lerdwana CPA No. 4958 or,
(certified in the Company’s financial statements in 2013 - 2015 (3 years))

3. Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen CPA No. 5238
(never certify in the Company’s financial statements)

In the event that the aforementioned auditors are unable to perform their duties, EY will replace
the person with another auditor from its firm to conduct the audit works and give an opinion on the financial
statements of the Company. The auditors who certify the financial statements have no relationship in any
circumstances and have neither conflict of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries nor the management,
major shareholders or any related persons of the aforementioned.

In addition, the following auditors of EY are the auditors of the Company’s subsidiaries:
The Company’s subsidiaries’ Auditors:

1. Mr. Termphong OpanaphanCPA No. 4501 or,
2. Mr. Khitsada Lerdwana CPA No. 4958 or,
3. Mrs. Poonnard Paocharoen CPA No. 5238

The Audit Fee

The Board with the consent from the Audit Committee considered and deemed it appropriate to
propose to the Meeting to approve audit fees for the year 2022 of The One Enterprise Plc. At the amount of Baht
1,200,000 (Baht one million two hundred thousand), as same as the previous year (This amount excludes
additional audit fees which may incur from future business restructuring the merger or expansion / change of the
company's business in the future or the effect of special audit (Change policy / accounting standards)) The
Board opined that the amount was appropriate and competitive to those of other audit firms proposed to the
Company.

The audit fee of the Company could be summarized as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Company 2022 Audit fee % 2021
(Proposed) Change Audit fee
The One Enterprise Plc. 1,200,000 0% 1,200,000
Non-audit service fee - None - - 3,150,000*
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Note:

* In year 2021, the Company and its affiliates received any other kind of services (Non-audit services) from EY,
that was the assurance practice to report on the collection of pro forma consolidated financial information
included in the prospectus.

Required Resolution:

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, a resolution under this agenda can be passed
with a simple majority vote of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast the vote.

Agenda 8 Other matters (If any)

The Board deemed it appropriate to include this agenda to be in accordance with Section 105 of
the Public Act stating that shareholders holding not less than one-third of the total number of shares sold, may
request the meeting to consider any matter other than those specified in the meeting notice, and also for
shareholders to ask any questions or provide any opinions (if any) and/or so that the Board shall answer or give
an explanation to shareholders. Also, in case there were shareholders sent their inquiries or comments in
advance.

However, according to the Principles of Corporate Governance of Listed Company issued by
Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) and AGM Checklist of Thai Investors Association, it is not recommended to add
any other agendas that are not specified in the invitation letter to the Meeting for approval or vote casting.

Additional Facts on the Meeting Agenda

In order to comply with the Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policy, the Company has
invited all shareholders to propose agenda for the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via the
Company’s website at www.theoneenterprise.com from January 25, 2022 to February 22, 2022. However, there

was no shareholder propose any agenda to the Company. The Board, therefore, deemed it appropriate to set
the agendas for the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as appears in this Invitation Letter.

kkkkkddkkddkkikkkikkkkkkhhkkhhkikhikiiiiiik
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Shareholders of The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited
(Formerly known as “The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The ONE Enterprise Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of The ONE Enterprise Public

Company Limited (the Company) for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, and of
The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2021, and their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting

Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
Emphasis of Matters

| draw attention to Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. In November 2020,

the Company purchased the ordinary shares of GMM Channel Holding Company Limited, with
totaling investment value of Baht 2,200 million. The Company completed the measurement of fair
value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquired date in April 2021.
The Company restated the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, presented herein as comparative information, to reflect the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed of GMM Channel Holding Company Limited and its

subsidiaries as from the acquisition date. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and

| do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.
Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue is significant to the financial statements and directly affects its operating
results, to which users of financial statements pay attention. The Group has numerous types of
revenue and it is derived through various channels, under agreements with a large number of
customers that contain a variety of conditions, pertaining to matters such as sales promotions and
discounts. In addition, changes in consumer behavior and industry trends have directly affected
the competitive environment in media and entertainment industry. There are therefore risks with

respect to the amount and timing of revenue recognition.
| have examined the revenue recognition of the Group by

+ Assessing and testing the Group’s IT system and its internal controls with respect to the
revenue cycle by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of the

controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls.

* Applying a sampling method to select sales and service agreements to assess whether
revenue recognition was consistent with the conditions of the relevant agreement, and

whether it was in compliance with the Group's policy.

* On asampling basis, examining supporting documents for sales and service transactions
occurring during the year and near the end of the accounting period, and with special
consideration given to expanding the scope of the examination supporting documentation for

transactions occurring near the end of the accounting period.
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* Reviewing credit notes that the Group issued after the period-end, with special consideration

given to expanding the scope of sampling of documentation.

» Performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible irregularities in
revenues transactions throughout the period, including accounting entries made through

journal vouchers.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

| have focused my audit on the consideration of the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives, as discussed in Notes 11 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, because the assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are a significant accounting estimate requiring management to exercise a
high degree of judgment in identifying the cash generating units, estimating the cash inflows that
are expected to be generated from that group of assets in the future, and setting an appropriate
discount rate and long-term growth rate. There are thus risks with respect to the amount of

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

| assessed the identification of cash generating units and the financial models selected by
management by gaining an understanding of management's decision-making process and
assessing whether the decisions made were consistent with how assets are utilised. In addition,
I tested the significant assumptions applied by management in preparing estimates of the cash
flows expected to be realised from the assets, by comparing those assumptions with information
from both internal and external sources and comparing past cash flow projections to actual
operating results in order to evaluate the exercise of management judgment in estimating

the cash flow projections. | also evaluated the discount rate applied by management through
analysis of the average costs of the Company and of the industry, tested the calculation of the
realisable values of the assets using the selected financial model and considered the impact of
changes in key assumptions on those realisable values, especially changes in the discount rate.
Moreover, | reviewed the disclosures made with respect to the impairment assessment for

goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor's report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available

to me after the date of this auditor’s report.
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

¢ lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine these matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

r

Termphong Opanaphan
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4501

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 23 February 2022
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The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Current asseté

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Short-term loans to subsidiaries
Inventories

Advance payments

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Bank restricted deposit
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in associate
Property, plant and equipment
Cost of spectrum license
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current financial assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

© o o

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
28

17

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit; Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated)

2,461,904,538 412,857,764 1,775,472,969 46,156,394
1,144,544 937 1,153,169,752 271,492,191 185,802,986
. - 605,500,000 426,500,000
564,446,528 599,476,423 600,000 700,000
35,471,276 24,962,953 -
87,964,318 71,045,224 14,075,266 1,568,178
4,294,331,597 2,261,512,116 2,667,140,426 660,827,558

4,559,075
11,762,065
807,230,479
933,463,714
1,520,300,591
1,160,080,603
166,185,049
1,000,000
406,529,552

27,569,385

16,066,580
831,486,429
1,061,024,274
1,620,300,591
1,155,657,303
251,308,909
1,000,000
428,602,011

5,185,783,777
1,499,900
32,328,433

7,894,334
12,574,459

18,778,518

5,185,783,777
1,499,900
25,626,319

1,727,870
4,309,071

126,762,678

5,011,121,128

5,293,015,482

5,258,859,421

5,345,709,615

9,305,452,725

7,554,627 598

7,925,999 847

6,006,537,173

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

{(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Note

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18
Unearned income
Current portion of long-term loans 20
Current portion of lease liabilities 21
Income tax payable
Other current liabilities 19
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans, net of current portion 20
Lease liabilities, net of current portion 21
Provision for long-term employee benefits 22
Deferred tax liabilities 28
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 23

Registered

2,381,250,000 ordinary shares of Baht 2 each

(2020: 38,100,000 ordinary shares

of Baht 100 each)

Issued and fully paid

2,381,250,000 ordinary shares of Baht 2 each

(2020: 38,100,000 ordinary shares

of Baht 100 each)

Crdinary share premium 23
Retain earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve 24

Unappropriated (deficit)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

D

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated)
931.226,716 785,584,104 57,385,614 25,989,547
547,168,481 419,418,546 8,148,353 8,148,353
311,477,428 593,026,669 - -
66,140,319 61,531,432 4,173,244 1,844,105
12,356,463 8,928,788 - -
169,061,485 132,858,562 40,591,798 22,202,752
2,037,430,892 2,001,348,101 110,297,009 58,182,757
- 2,975,187,017 - 2,194,959 589
161,186,323 227,983,674 11,552,335 7,733,183
192,619,488 171,508,050 32,841,925 31,023,345
68,709,776 76,259,374 - -
422,515,587 3,450,938,115 44,394,260 2,233,716,117
2,459,946 479 5,452,286,216 164,691,269 2,291,898,874

4,762,500,000

3,810,000,000

4,762,500,000

3,810,000,000

4,762,500,000
2,817,115,250

6,356,408

(740,627,513) _ (1,707,957,551)

3,810,000,000

4,762,500,000
2,817,115,250

6,356,408
185,336,920

3,810,000,000

(95,361,701)

6,845,344 145
162,101

2,102,042,449
198,933

7,771,308,578

3,714,638,299

6,845,506,246

2,102,241,382

7,771,308,578

3,714,638,299

9,305,452,725

7,654,527 ,598

7,925,999,847

6,008,537,173

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated)
Profit or loss:
Revenues
Sales of goods 25 140,859,876 4,061,251 -
Service income 25 3,961,742,772  2,479,780,052 246,810,547 150,944,848
Revenues from copyrights 25 1,244,186,054 642,933,776 22,120,948 30,267,039
Dividend income 11, 12 < - 240,099,712 6,499,616
Other income 89,028,155 88,323,885 1,307,584 11,141,919
Total revenues 5435,816,857  3,215,098,964 510,338,791 198,853,422
Expenses
Cost of sales 57,809,635 16,236,598 - -
Cost of services 2,579,325,549 1,523,640,802 908,703 46,613,242
Selling and servicing expenses 208,299,509 121,770,631 11,633,690 348,005
Administrative expenses 1,497,693,929 802,984,871 316,432,805 173,357,467
Total expenses 4,344,128,622  2,464,632,902 328,975,198 220,318,714
Profit (loss) from operating activities 1,091,688,235 750,466,062 181,363,593 (21,465,292)
Share of profit from investment in associate 12 99,695 4,679,736 -
Finance income 2,304,247 1,018,502 15,773,942 4,494 504
Finance cost 26 (128,660,588) (87,069,525) (75,958,803) (8,194,260)
Profit (loss) before income tax expenses 965,431,589 669,094,775 121,178,732 (25,165,048)
Income tax income (expenses) 28 (137,007,588) (37,836,726) 5,949,435 (1,749,454)
Profit (loss) for the year 828,424,001 631,258,049 127,128,167 (26,914,502)
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Actuarial loss - net of income tax 12.2,22,28 (23,880,869) (9,263,811) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 804,543,132 631,258,049 117,864,356 (26,914,502)
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 828,376,458 631,225,160 127,128,167 (26,914,502)
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 47,543 32,889

828,424,001 631,258,049
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 804,495,773 631,225,160 117,864,356 (26,914,502)
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 47,359 32,889

804,543,132 631,258,049
Basic earnings (loss) per share 29
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 0.42 0.33 0.06 (0.01)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Statement of changes in shareholders® equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2020

Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy for lease
Balance as at 1 January 2020 - after adjustment

Profit for the year (restated)

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year (restated)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 11)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 - as restated

Balance as at 31 December 2020 - as previously reported

Adjustment of the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed as a result of the acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 11)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 - as restated

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Share capital issued (Note 23)

Transfer the share premium to offset with the deficit (Note 23)

Setting aside to statutory reserve (Note 24)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries

Balance as at 31 December 2021

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Total equity Equity attributable
Issued and Retained earnings attributable to to non-controlling Total
paid-up Share Appropriated - Unappropriated owners of interests of shareholders’
share capital premium statutory reserve (deficit) the Company the subsidiaries equity
3,810,000,000 - (2,333,760,713) 1,476,239,287 1,299 1,476,240,586
- - (5,421,998) (5,421,998) - (5,421,998)
3,810,000,000 - (2,339,182,711) 1,470,817,289 1,299 1,470,818,588
- - 631,225,160 631,225,160 32,889 631,258,049
- - 631,225,160 631,225,160 32,889 631,258,049
- * N - 164,745 164,745
3,810,000,000 - (1,707,957,551) 2,102,042,449 198,933 2,102,241,382
3,810,000,000 - (1,705,318,101) 2,104,681,899 198,933 2,104,880,832
- - (2.639,450) (2,639,450) - (2,639,450)
3,810,000,000 - (1,707,957,551) 2,102,042,449 198,933 2,102,241,382
- - 828,376,458 828,376,458 47,543 828,424,001
- - (23,880,685) (23,880,685) (184) (23,880,869)
- - 804,495,773 804,495,773 47,359 804,543,132
952,500,000 2,986,305,923 - - 3,938,805,923 - 3,938,805;.923
- (169,190,673) - 169,190,673 - - -
- 6,356,408 (6,356,408) - - -
= - - - (84,191) (84,191)
4,762,500,000 2,817,115,250 6,356,408 (740,627,513) 6,845,344,145 162,101 6,845,506,246

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2020
Cumulative effect of change

in accounting policy for leases
Balance as at 1 January 2020

- after adjustment
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2020

Balance as at 1 January 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Share capital issued (Note 23)

Transfer the share premium to offset

with the deficit (Note 23)

Setting aside to statutory reserve (Note 24)

Balance as at 31 December 2021

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Issued and Retained earnings Total
paid-up Share Appropriated - Unappropriated  shareholders'
share capital premium statutory reserve (deficit) equity

3,810,000,000

(68,170,266)

(276,933)

3,741,829,734

(276,933)

3,810,000,000

(68,447,199)
(26,914,502)

3,741,552,801
(26,914,502)

(26,914,502)

(26,914,502)

3,810,000,000

(95,361,701)

3,714,638,299

3,810,000,000

(95,361,701)

3,714,638,299

’ ; - 127128167 127,128,167
g - : (9,263,811) (9,263,811)
; - - 117.864,356 117,864,356
952,500,000  2,986,305,923 . - 3,938,805,923
- (169,190,673) 169,190,673 -
: . 6,356,408 (6,356,408)
4,762,500,000  2,817,115,250 6,356,408 185336920  7,771,308,578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Amortisation of cost of spectrum license
Amortisation of prepayment for marketing agent
Impairment loss on financial assets (reversal)
Gain from lease agreement cancellation
Reduction of cost of inventory to net realisable value (reversal)
(Gains) losses on disposal and write-off equipments
and intangible assets
Allowance for impairment of intangible assets (reversal)
Loss on write-off withholding tax
Share of profit from invesiment in associate
Long-term employee benefits expenses
Dividend income
Difference from rental discount
Finance income
Finance cost
Profit (loss) from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Advance payments
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Unearned income
Other current liabilities
Long-term employee benefits paid
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Cash received from tax refund

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated)
965,431,589 669,094,775 121,178,732 (25,165,048)
141,690,530 99,907,470 10,158,433 7,373,948
800,371,190 584,554,601 636,215 60,531,901
127,560,560 127,910,041 -
8,040,000 - - -
(12,583,772) 13,157,138 (748) (1,706,072)
(8,278,357) - -
26,783,040 (3,122,491) (3.521,693)
(105,125) 2,300,266 1,038 9,633,884
43,485,452 (14,774,528) (14,774,528)
13,580,437 - 13,035,610 -
(99,695) (4,679,736) 5
11,551,421 9,632,416 128,141 1,911,075
- - (240,099,712) (6,499,616)
(354,130) - (36,810)
(2,304,247) (1,018,502) (15,773,942) (4,494,504)
128,660,588 87,069,525 75,958,803 8,184,260
2,243,783,611 1,669,676,845 (34,777,430) 31,446,797
20,729,188 53,182,520 (85,445,315) (41,990,324)
(811,293,838) (584,079,315) 100,000 3,681,693
(10,508,323) 6,260,540 - -
(16,919,094) 123,700,500 (12,507,088) 1,347,408
(12,941,823) (156,416,950) (8,224,555) 397,664
136,333,277 (90,489,896) 26,809,172 (3,351,929)
127,749,935 (85,536,661) - (1,706,880)
36,202,923 22,338,574 18,389,046 11,470,043
(19,785,474) (16,308,327) (9,889,325) -
1,693,350,382 842,327,830 (105,545,495) 1,194,472
(123,698,504) (85,609,241) (70,522,5186) (7,293,642)
(155,317,288) (70,524,905) (5,952,329) (7,481,858)
118,574,580 16,354,928 109,125,434 -
1,5632,909,170 702,548,612 (72,894,906) (13,581,028)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

(Formerly known as "The ONE Enterprise Company Limited")

Cash flow statement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease (increase) in bank restricted deposit
Acquisition of equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in short-term loans to subsidiaries

Net cash paid for investment in subsidiary (Note 11)
Proceeds from sales of equipment and intangible asset
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in short-term loan from bank

Cash receipt from long-term loan

Cash paid for deferred front-end fee

Repayment of long-term loan

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Dividend payment from subsidiaries to non-controlling interest
Proceeds from increase in share capital

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information:
Non-cash transactions:
Other payables for purchase of equipment

Increase in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated)

23,010,310 (46,489) -
(100,030,127) (43,438,397) (3,171,419) (283,913)
(28,347,000) (8,262,460) (6,407,000) (1,839,600)
(179,000,000) (75,500,000)
(2,051,837,514) - (2,200,000,000)
133,849 54,226 467 97,977,766
2,783,646 1,018,502 15,630,801 3,363,917
3,999,733 6,499,616 240,089,712 6,498,616
(98,449,585) (2,096,012,516) 67,152,561 (2,169,782,214)

(80,000,000) - =

2,200,000,000 2,200,000,000

- (5,500,000} - (5.500,000)
(3,262,500,000) (475,000,000)  (2,200,000,000) -
(61,634,538) (31,408,030) (3,747,003) (1,652,481)
(84,192) - -
3,938,805,923 3,938,805,923 -
614,687,193  1,608,091,970 1,735,058,920 2,192,847,519
2,049,046,774 214,628,066 1,729,316,575 9,484,277
412,857,764 198,229,698 46,156,394 36,672,117
2,461,904,538 412,857,764 1,775,472,969 46,156,394
17,124,974 7,013,880 4,677,295 486,276
86,571,004 49,092,064 9,895,294 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure No.3.1

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Name - Surame Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun

Age - 39years
Nationality - Thai
Appointment Date of Directorship - 3 May 2021
Period of Directorship - 11months

(until the date of AGM)
3 years 11 months

(Indluding the propased agenda for this time)
Type of Director to be Appointed - Director (Non-Executive Director)

Education
Doctor of Medicine, Faculty of Medicine at Siriraj Hospital, Mahidol University

American Board of Anti-Aging and Regenerative Medicine (ABAARM) American Academy of
Anti-Aging Medicine, Chicago lllinois USA.

American College of Anti-Aging Sports (ACASP) American Academy of Anti-aging Medicine

Fellowship in Anti-aging and Regenerative Medicine (FAARM) American Academy of Anti-aging
Medicine, USA.

Fellow of the European Committee of Sexual Medicine (FECSM), Netherlands

Training Program

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):
- Program Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 246/2017

Position in the Company

3 May 2021 - Present Director, The One Enterprise Plc.

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o [Ljsted Company: -None -

o  Non-Listed Company . 5 companies

Period Position Company
Director/Chief . -
2016 - Present . , BDMS Wellness Clinic Company Limited
Operating Officer
2016 - Present Director BDMS Wellness Resort Company Limited
2015 - Present President Tanupol Enterprise Company Limited
Medical Director of . . .
2011 - Present Royal Life Bangkok Hospital Royal Life Anti-Aging
2011 - Present Director Prananporn Company Limited

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period Position Company

Listed Companies: -None-

Enclosure 3.1 Page 1/2 The One Enterprise Public Company Limited



(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure No.3.1

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Period Position Company

Other Companies

2017 - 2 May 2021 Director The One Enterprise Company Limited

o Other company that may cause any confiict of interest to the Company : - None -

Area of expertise - Set Vision and Strategic Planning
Business Administration and Organization Management
Good corporate governance

Percentage of Share Holding Direct :0.04%
as of 23 February 2022 Indirect : - None -

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Executive Related Relationship - None -
Legal Disputes - None -
Criteria and Recruitment The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Procedure Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of

Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun as a director for another term. This is in
accordance with the criteria and recruitment process of the
Company. (As being disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report (56-1 One
Report) under the Heading of 7.3. Corporate Governance > 7.3.1
Committee Structure > Scope of authorities, duties and
responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee >
1. Nomination (Page. 167 - 172))

Meeting Attendance in 2021 e The Shareholder Meeting in 2021 : Attended 2 / 2 times

e The Board of Directors' Meeting: Attended 9/ 9 times
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(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure No.3.2

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Name - Surname Mr. Piya Sosothikul

Age - 50 vyears
Nationality - Thai
Appointment Date of Directorship - 3 May 2021
Period of Directorship - 11 months

(until the date of AGM)
3 years 11 months

(Indluding the propased agenda for this time)
Type of Director to be Appointed - Director (Non-Executive Director)

Education
Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering and Economics, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA.
Master's degree in Chemical Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), USA.

Master of Business Administration, Harvard University, USA.

Training Program

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):
- Program Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 3572005

- Program Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (CGI) Class 4/2015

Position in the Company

3 May 2021 - Present Director (Authorized Director), The One Enterprise Plc.

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o [jsted Company : 4 companies

Period Position Company

2011 - Present D|rect9r/ Executive Seacon Development Plc.
Committee Member

2011 - Present Director S&P Syndicate Company Limited

2011 - Present Advisor to Presidents Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Director / Executive o . .
2007 - Present Committee Member Bualuang Securities Public Company Limited

o  Non-Listed Company: 10 companies

Period Position Company
2020 - Present Director Mitta Social Enterprise Company Limited
2018 - Present Director Boonraksa Holdings Company Limited
2016 - Present Member of Executlve Gris T Company Limited
Committee
2012 - Present Member of Executlve Siam Housing Company Limited
Committee
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Enclosure No.3.2

Period Position Company
2011 - Present Director The Thai Churos Company Limited
2011 - Present Director The Nanyang Marketing Company Limited
2011 - Present Director Nanyang Industry Company Limited

2010 - Present

Director / Managing

Erawanna Company Limited

Director
2004 - Present Director Seacon Company Limited
2018 - Present Director PR Holdings Company Limited

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period

Position

Company

Listed Companies:

12 Mar 2021 - 11 Aug 2021

Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee Member

The One Enterprise Plc.

Other Companies

2015 -2 May 2021

Director
(Authorized Director)

The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.

o Other company that may cause any confiict of interest to the Company: - None -

Area of expertise

companies

- Marketing

- Risk Management

- Accounting and Finance

- Have knowledge and experience in the business of the group of

- Set Vision and Strategic Planning

- Business Administration and Organization Management
- Investment and New Business Development
- Good Corporate Governance

- Information Technology and Digital Business

- Regulations of the SET or other regulators

Percentage of Share Holding Direct :0.08%

as of 23 February 2022

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Indirect : - None -

Executive Related Relationship | - None -

Legal Disputes

- None -

Enclosure 3.2
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Enclosure No.3.2

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Criteria and Recruitment
Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of
Mr. Piya Sosothikul as a director for another term. This is in accordance
with the criteria and recruitment process of the Company. (As being
disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report (56-1 One Report) under the
Heading of 7.3. Corporate Governance > 7.3.1 Committee Structure >
Scope of authorities, duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee > 1. Nomination (Page. 167 -172))

Meeting Attendance in 2021

e The Shareholder Meeting in 2021 : Attended 2 / 2 times
e The Board of Directors' Meeting : Attended 9/ 9 times

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Meeting: Attended
3/3 times

Enclosure 3.2
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(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure No.3.3

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Name - Surame Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham

Age - 34 years
Nationality - Thai
Appointment Date of Directorship 3 May 2021
Period of Directorship 11 months

(until the date of AGM)
3 years 11 months
(Indluding the propased agenda for this time)

Type of Director to be Appointed Director (Executive Director)

Education

Bachelor’s degree in Communication, University of Southern California, USA

Training Program

Thai Institute of Directors (10D):
- Program

184 /2021

Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) Class

Position in the Company
3 May 2021 - Present

31 May 2017 - Present
1 Mar 2021 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)
Member of Executive Committee
Chief Group Marketing Officer

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o Ljsted Company : - None -

e Non-Listed Company: 17 companies

Period Position
2021 - Present

Company

Director (Authorized Director)

Watermelon Holding Co., Ltd.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Fah Damrongchaitham Co., Ltd.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM Channel Holding Co., Ltd.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM Media Plc.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Change 2018 Co., Ltd.

2018 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM TV Co., Ltd.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

GMM Studios International Co., Ltd.

2020 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

A Time Media Co., Ltd.

2019 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Jazzclub Co., Ltd.

2019 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Geurtfah Co., Ltd.

2018 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Liberation Co., Ltd.
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Enclosure No.3.3

Period

Position

Company

2017 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Canvas Restaurant Co., Ltd.

2017 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

One 31 Co., Ltd.

2017 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Exact Scenario Co., Ltd.

2017 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Act Studios Co., Ltd.

2015 - Present

Director (Authorized Director)

Tango Tonight Co., Ltd.

2007 - Present Director

Damrongchaitham Foundation

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period Position Company

Listed Companies:

2011 -2011 Assistant Product Manager GMM Grammy Plc.

2009 - 2011 Marketing Officer GMM Grammy Plc.

Other Companies

2021 - Feb 2022 Chief Executive Officer (Acting) GMM Studios International Co., Ltd.

Oct 2019 - Feb 2021 Chief Marketing Officer The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.

2019 -2020 Director O Shopping Co., Ltd.

2018 - Oct 2019 Chief Marketing Officer One 31 Co., Ltd.

2018 - 2018 Executive Vice President One 31 Co,, Ltd.
2018-2018 Executive Vice President The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.
2015-2018 Production Management Director The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.
2015 -2015 Production Management Director One 31 Co,, Ltd.

2013 -2015 Chief Operating Officer Z Trading Co., Ltd.
2013 -2013 Chief Operating Officer GMM Z Co., Ltd.

2012 -2013 Marketing Director GMM Z Co., Ltd.
2011-2012 Marketing Director GMM One Sky Co., Ltd.

o Other company that may cause any confiict of interest to the Company: - None -

Area of expertise Have knowledge and experience in the business of the group of

companies
Set Vision and Strategic Planning
Business Administration and Organization Management

Marketing

Investment and New Business Development
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Enclosure No.3.3

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Good Corporate Governance

Information Technology and Digital Business

Percentage of Share Holding
as of 23 February 2022

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Direct :0.13%
Indirect : - None -

Executive Related Relationship

- Son of Mr. Paiboon Damrongchaitham (Chairman of the Board of
Director)
- Mr. Fahmai Damrongchaitham (Director) and Ms. Ingfah

Damrongchaitham (Director of GMM Media Co., Ltd) are siblings of
the same parents.

Legal Disputes

- None -

Criteria and Recruitment
Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of Mr. Rafah
Damrongchaitham as a director for another term. This is in accordance
with the criteria and recruitment process of the Company. (As being
disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report (56-1 One Report) under the
Heading of 7.3. Corporate Governance > 7.3.1 Committee Structure >
Scope of authorities, duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee > 1. Nomination (Page.167-172))

Meeting Attendance in 2021

e The Shareholder Meeting in 2021 : Attended 2 / 2 times
e The Board of Directors' Meeting : Attended 9/ 9 times

e The Executive Committee’s Meeting: Attended 13/ 13 times

Enclosure 3.3
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Enclosure No.3.4

Name - Surname

Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub

Age 62 years

Nationality Thai

Appointment Date of Directorship - 3 May 2021

Period of Directorship 11 months (until the date of AGM)

Type of Director to be

Education

3years 11 months

(Induding the proposed agenda for this time)

Appointed - Independent Director

Bachelor's degree in Law, Chulalongkorn University
Barrister-at-Law, the Institute of Legal Education, Thai Bar Association
Master of Laws, The University of lowa, USA

Training Program

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

- Program Board Nomination and Compensation Program (BNCP) Class 12 /2021

- Program Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 259/2018
- Program Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (CGI)  Class 18 /2017
- Program Directors Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 13072014

Position in the Company

3 May 2021 - Present Independent Director
3 May 2021 - Present Member of the Audit Committee

12 Aug 2021 - Present

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o Ljsted Company:

1 company

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Period

Position

Company

2016 - Present

Independent Director / Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee /
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Member /

Audit Committee Member

Bangkok Airways Public Company Limited

o Non-Listed Company: 3 companies

Period

Position

Company

2020 - Present

Director

Deeddee New Gen Company Limited

2019 - Present

Senior Advisor

SRPP Company Limited

1998 - Present

Director

Advocate Holding Company Limited
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Enclosure No.3.4

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period

Position

Company

Listed Companies

2020 - Jan 2022

Independent Director /
Audit Committee Member / Nomination
and Remuneration Committee Member /
Risk Management Committee Member

Global Consumer Public Company
Limited

Other Companies

2020 - 12 May 2021

Independent Director /
Audit Committee Member

The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.

2002 -2019

Law Partner

Norton Rose Fulbright (Thailand)
Company Limited

e Other company that may cause any conflict of interest to the Company: - None -

¢ Relationship in the company/major shareholder/subsidiary/associated company or other conflicted

business entity in present or during the past 2 years:

Type of Relationship Status / Explanation
1. Being a director who takes part in the management of the company, ~No -
employee, staff member, or advisor receiving a regular salary.
2. Being a professional service provider. (i.e., auditor or legal advisor) - No -
3. Having business relationship. (i.e., buy-sell materials/products/services or - None -
financial support)

Area of expertise

Law

Risk management

Good Corporate Governance,

Business Administration and Organization Management

Regulations of the SET or other regulators

Percentage of Share Holding as of | Direct :0.04%

23 February 2022

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Indirect : - None -

Executive Related Relationship - None -

Legal Disputes

- None -
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Enclosure No.3.4

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Criteria and Recruitment Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of Mr. Somboon
Kitiyansub as an independent director for another term and has
qualifications as an independent director as stipulated in the relevant
laws by being able to give opinions independently. This is in accordance
with the criteria and recruitment process of the Company. (As being
disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report (56-1 One Report) under the
Heading of 7.3. Corporate Governance > 7.3.1 Committee Structure >
Scope of authorities, duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee > 1. Nomination (Page.167-172))

Meeting Attendance in 2021

e The Shareholder Meeting in 2021: Attended 2 / 2 times
e The Board of Directors' Meeting: Attended 9/ 9 times
e The Audit Committee’s Meeting: Attended 8/ 8 times

¢ The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Meeting: Attended
2/2times
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(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure No.3.5

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

Name - Surname - Mrs. Duangmanee Sukhum
Age - S5years

Nationality - Thai

Appointment Date of Directorship - 3 May 2021

Period of Directorship 11 months (until the date of AGM)

3years 11 months
(Induding the proposed agenda for this time)

Type of Director to be Appointed - Independent Director
Education
Bachelor of Fine Arts in Architecture, Rhode Island School of Design
Bachelor of Architecture, Rhode Island School of Design
Training Program
Thai Institute of Directors (10D):
- Program Board Nomination and Compensation Program (BNCP) Class 1272021
- Program Director Certificate Program (DCP) Class 296 /2020

Position in the Company

3 May 2021 - Present Independent Director
12 Aug 2021 - Present Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directorship and Executive Position in Other Company

o [Ljsted Company: -None-

o Non-Listed Company: 4 companies

Period Position Company
2015 - Present Director Kaew Manee Netr Co., Ltd.
2010 - Present Director Viduranadda Co., Ltd.
2002 - Present Director Agora Co., Ltd.
1985 - Present Director Nanthanakul Co., Ltd.

Working Experience (at least for the past 5 years)

Period Position Company

Listed Companies: - None -

Other Companies

2020 - 12 May 2021 Independent Director The One Enterprise Co., Ltd.

e Other company that may cause any conflict of interest to the Company: - None -
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(For consideration of Agenda 5)

Enclosure No.3.5

Profile of the directors who retired by rotation for the year 2022
and be proposed to act as Company’s director for another term.
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

¢ Relationship in the company/major shareholder/subsidiary/associated company or other conflicted

business entity in present or during the past 2 years:

Type of Relationship Status / Explanation

1. Being a director who takes part in the management of the company, employee,

. .. -No -

staff member, or advisor receiving a regular salary.
2. Being a professional service provider. (i.e., auditor or legal advisor) - No -
3. Having business relationship. (i.e., buy-sell materials/products/services or None

financial support)

Area of expertise

Set Vision and Strategic Planning
Business Administration and Organization Management
Investment and New Business Development

Good corporate governance

Percentage of Share Holding as of
23 February 2022

(According to Section 59 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.)

Direct :0.04%
Indirect : - None -

Executive Related Relationship

- None -

Legal Disputes

- None -

Criteria and Recruitment Procedure

The Board has considered and agreed with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to propose the reappointment of Mrs.
Duangmanee Sukhum as an independent director for another term and
has qualifications as an independent director as stipulated in the
relevant laws by being able to give opinions independently. This is in
accordance with the criteria and recruitment process of the Company.
(As being disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report (56-1 One Report)
under the Heading of 7.3. Corporate Governance > 7.3.1 Committee
Structure > Scope of authorities, duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee > 1. Nomination (Page.167-
172))

Meeting Attendance in 2021

e The Shareholder Meeting in 2021: Attended 2 / 2 times
e The Board of Directors' Meeting: Attended 9/ 9 times

¢ The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Meeting:
Attended 2 / 2 times
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(For consideration of Agenda 5) Enclosure 3.6

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

Qualifications of the Independent Director
The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

The qualification of the Company’s independent director is in compliance with (equal to) the minimum
requirement of the Office of Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, which is in accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board. The details are
as followings:

1. Holds shares of not exceeding 1% of total voting shares of the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, including
shares held by related parties.

2. Is not or has not ever been an executive director, employee, staff, corporate advisor receiving a regular
salary, or a controlling person of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its same-level subsidiaries, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons unless the
foregoing status has ended for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as Independent Director.
Such prohibitions exclude government officer or advisor to any government agency who is major
shareholder or controlling person of the Company.

3. Is not a person related by blood or by law in terms of father, mother, spouse, sibling and child, including
spouse of the children, of other directors, management, major shareholders, controlling persons, or
persons to be nominated as directors, management or controlling persons of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

4. Is not or has not ever been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, and is not a significant
shareholder, a controlling person, or a partner of an audit firm which employs auditors of the Company,
its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling
persons unless the foregoing relationship has ended for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as
Independent Director.

5. Has not or has not had a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries,
its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, in the manner that may
interfere with his/her independent judgement, or is not or has not ever been a significant shareholder or
a controlling person of any person having business relationship with the Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons unless the
foregoing relationship has ended for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as Independent
Director. The term “business relationship” aforementioned includes any normal business transaction,
rental or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to assets or services, grant or receipt of
financial assistance through receiving or extending loans, guarantee, providing assets as collateral,
including any other similar actions which result in the Company or his counterparty being subject to
indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of 3% or more of the net tangible assets of the
Company or Baht 20 million or more, whichever is lower.

6. Is not or has not ever been any professional advisor including legal or financial advisor who receives an
annual service fee exceeding Baht 2 million from the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons, and is not a significant
shareholder, a controlling person, or a partner of the professional advisor unless the foregoing
relationship has ended for more than 2 years prior to being appointed as Independent Director.

7. s not a director representing Board member of the Company’s, its major shareholders, or a shareholder
who is related to the Company’s major shareholders.

8. Does not own/run any business similar to or material competing with the Company or its subsidiaries, or
not being a significant partner in any partnership, executive director, employee, staff, advisor receiving
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regular salary, or holds more than 1% of total voting shares of the company similar to or material
competing with the Company or its subsidiaries.

9. Has no any other characteristic which make him/her incapable of expressing independent opinions with
regard to the Company’s business.

10. After being appointed, Independent Director may be authorized by the Board of Directors to make a
collective decision to execute business of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries, its major shareholders, or its controlling persons.

Any person being appointed as Independent Director of the Company may be a person who has or has had a
business relationship or may be a professional advisor receiving amount exceeding those specified in item 5 or
6 in case the Board of Directors has duly considered that relationship will not affect the ability to perform duties
and express independent opinions.
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Details of the Independent Directors Proposed as Proxy Holders
for the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
through electronic meeting (E-AGM)

. Special
Name Position Age Address alr:ﬁ::leas?tlenm Interest in
9 agenda item *
1. Mrs.Sauwanee | - Chairman of the Audit 63 No.9/32, Soi Agenda 6 None
Thai . c it Sukhumvit 39
airungroj ommittee years (Phrom Phong),
Independent Director Khlong Tan Nuea,
Watthana, Bangkok
11110
2. Ms.Suvabha - Chairman of the 58 No0.59/8, Phaya Agenda 6 None
Charoenying Nomination and years | Thai Road, Phaya
Remuneration Thai, Ratchathewi,
Committee Bangkok 10400
Member of the Audit
Committee
Independent Director
3. Mr.Somboon - Member of the Audit 63 No.112/162 Moo 6, Agenda 6 Agenda 5
Kitiyansub Committee years | The Grand Village,
Pantai Norasingh
“Nﬂgmibnzt[igfqthaen d Subdistrict, Mueang
Remuneration Samut Sakhon
c u itt District, Samut
ommittee Sakhon Province
Independent Director 74000

*

Special Interest Special interest means having a special interest that is different from other directors in every
agenda item proposed, include receive the benefits or compensation beyond the normal criteria.

** Additional condition as per Department of Business Development’s Announcement dated February 4, 2013
regarding Proxy Granting, Proxy Holders’ Voting Rights, and Delivery of an Invitation to Shareholders’
Meeting of Public Company

G. The vote casting of a proxy holder is considered as a vote made on behalf of a proxy grantor. Therefore, a
proxy holder, including those proxy holders who are independent directors that may have conflict of
interest in any agenda, can still cast a vote on that agenda, on behalf of a proxy grantor who has no
conflict of interest.

Note:

Agenda 5: To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the
year 2022.

Agenda 6: To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022.
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

CHAPTER YV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 19. The Company shall have a board of directors which consists of at least five (5) directors and not less
Than one-half (1/2) of the total number of directors shall reside in the Kingdom of Thailand. The
board of directors shall elect one director to be the chairman of the board of directors and may elect
one or several directors the vice-chairman and may elect other positions as it deems appropriate.
The vice-chairman shall have duties according to the Article of Association in respect of the missions
delegated to him/her in by the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

A director is not required to be the shareholder of the Company.
Article 20. The shareholders meeting shall elect directors in accordance with the following rules and procedures:
(1) One shareholder shall have one (1) vote per one (1) share;

(2) Each of shareholder may exercise all the votes he/she has under (1) to elect one or several
persons as director or directors. In case where election directors of the Company, the
shareholder cannot split his or her votes between more than one person or in the basis extent;

(3) The persons obtaining the highest votes in descending order shall be elected as directors equal
to the number of the directors required at such meeting. In case several persons obtain equal
votes, and the number of candidates exceeds the number of the directors to be elected, the
chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Article 21. At every annual general meeting, one-third (1/3) of directors at that time shall retire. If the number of
directors is not a multiple of three, then the number of directors nearest to one-third (1/3) shall be
retired.

The directors to retire in the first and second years after the registration of the Company shall be
selected by drawing lots. In subsequent years, the directors having held longest shall retire.

The directors retiring from office may be re-elected.

Article 25. In the case where the whole board of directors vacate office, the vacated board of directors shall
remain in office to conduct the business of the company as necessary, until the new board of
directors takes office, unless otherwise ordered by the court removing the board of directors from
office.

In case the board of directors vacate the office, such directors must hold a meeting of shareholders
to elect a new board of directors within one (1)month as from the date of vacancy, by serving a
written notice calling a meeting of shareholders not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the date of
the meeting and the notice calling the meeting has been published in a newspaper not less than
three (3) consecutive days prior to the date of the meeting.

Article 26. A meeting of shareholders removes any director from office before the expiration of his/her term by a
passing a resolution with the votes not less than three-quarters (3/4) of the total number of
shareholders attending the meeting and eligible to vote and holding in aggregate number of shares
not less than one-half of the total number of shares held by the shareholders attending the meeting
and eligible to vote at the meeting.

Article 27. The board of directors must perform its duties and carry on the business of the Company in
accordance with the laws, the Company’s objectives and Articles of Association, including any the
resolutions of the shareholder's meetings. The board of directors may appoint one or more persons
to perform any task on its behalf.

The board of directors may appoint one or more persons to perform any tasks on its behalf.
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Article 31. No Director shall, either for his/her own benefit or the benefit of others, operate any business which
has the same nature as and is in competition with the business of the Company or become a partner
in an ordinary partnership or become a partner with unlimited liability in any limited partnership or
become a director of any limited company or public limited companies which has the same nature
and is in competition with the business of the Company, unless he or she has notified to the
shareholders meeting prior to the resolution for his or her appointment.

Article 33. The directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration from the Company in the form of award,
meeting allowance, gratuity, bonus or benefits of other nature as considered and approved by the
shareholders meeting by a vote of not less than two-third (2/3) of the total votes of shareholders
attending the meeting. The remuneration may be fixed in a certain amount, or be specified from time
to time, or be in effect until a change by a resolution of the shareholders meeting. The directors shall
also be entitled to receive per diem allowances and other fringe benefits in accordance with the
Company's regulations.

The provision in the first paragraph shall not prejudice the rights of the staff or employees of the
Company, who have been appointed as directors, to receive the remuneration or benefits as a staff
or an employee of the Company.

Article 34. The directors who authorize to sign on behalf of the Company are:
Any Three (3) directors jointly sign with the Company seal affixed.

The board of directors shall be authorized to determine the names of the directors authorized to sign
on behalf of the Company.

CHAPTER VI
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 35. The board of directors shall arrange for an Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held within
four (4) months of the last day of the accounting year of the Company.

The shareholders’ meeting other than the meeting mentioned in the first paragraph shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting. The board of directors may call such an extraordinary general
meeting at any time it deems appropriate.

One or more shareholders holding shares amounting to not less than ten (10) percent of the total
number of shares sold may submit their request for the board of directors to call an extraordinary
general meeting at any time, but the subject and the reasons for calling such a meeting must be
clearly stated in the request in which case the board of directors shall call a shareholders’ meeting to
be held within forty-five (45) days of the date of receipt of such a request from shareholders.

If the board of directors does not arrange for the meeting of shareholders within the period as
mentioned in the third paragraph, the shareholders who subscribe their names or other shareholders
holding shares amounting to the required amount may call the meeting themselves within forty-five
(45) days as from the date on which the period as mentioned in the third paragraph ends. In this
case, the meeting is deemed a shareholders meeting called by the board of directors and the
Company shall be responsible for the necessary expenses incurred from convening the meeting and
shall reasonably facilitate the meeting.

In the case where the number of shareholders present at the meeting convened by the shareholders
under the fourth paragraph is not sufficient to constitute a quorum as required in Article 37, the
shareholders under the fourth paragraph shall be jointly responsible to the Company for the
expenses incurred from the convening of such Meeting.

Article 36. In calling a shareholders’ meeting, the board of directors shall prepare a notice thereof specifying the
place, date and time, agendas of the meeting and the matters to be proposed to the meeting together
with proper details by indicating whether they are proposed for acknowledgement, approval or
consideration, as the case maybe, including opinions of the board of directors thereon. The notice of
such meeting shall be sent to the shareholders and the registrar not less than seven (7) days prior to
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the date of the meeting and be published in a newspaper for not less than three (3) consecutive days
not less than three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting.

The shareholders’ meeting may be held in the province in which the head office of the Company is
located or in any other place in Kingdom of Thailand as specified by the board of directors.

Article 37. At a shareholders’ meeting, regardless of whether the shareholders’ meeting is conducted in the
physical same place or by electronic meeting, at least twenty-five (25) shareholders and proxies (if
any), or not less than one-half (1/2) of the total number of shareholders, holding an aggregate
number of shares not less than one-third (1/3) of the total shares sold, must attend the meeting to
constitute a quorum.

At any shareholders’ meeting, in case where one (1) hour has passed since the time for which the
meeting is scheduled and the number of shareholders attending the meeting has not constituted a
quorum under the first paragraph, if the meeting is called by a request of shareholders, such meeting
shall be cancelled. If the meeting is not called by the request of shareholders, another meeting shall
be called, and the notice of the meeting shall be sent to the shareholders not less than seven (7)
days prior to the date of the meeting. At this subsequent meeting, no quorum is required to be
constituted.

Article 38. At a meeting of shareholders, the shareholder may appoint other person to attend and vote at any
meeting on his behalf. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be made in writing and signed by the
shareholder who is the principle and, in a form, as prescribed by the registrar pursuant to the laws
governing public limited company. The proxy-holder shall submit the proxy to the chairman of the
board of directors or the person designated by the chairman of the board of directors at the place of
the meeting before the proxy-holder attends the meeting. The proxy shall contain, at least, the
following particulars:

(1) the number of shares held by the shareholder;
(2) the name of the proxy;
(3) the time of the meeting where the proxy is authorized to attend the meeting and vote.

Article 39. The chairman of the board of directors shall preside over a shareholders’ meeting. In case the
chairman is absent or unable to perform the duty, the vice-chairman shall act as the presiding
chairman. If there is no vice-chairman, or the vice-chairman is absent or unable to perform the duty,
the shareholders present at the meeting shall elect one amongst themselves to preside over the
meeting.

Article 40. In vote casting at the shareholders’ meeting, each shareholder shall have voting rights equal to the
number of shares held, one (1) vote for each share of which he is holder. Voting shall be conducted
openly, except that voting shall be by secret ballot where so requested by not less than five
subscribers and so resolved by the meeting, in which case the procedure for voting by secret ballot
shall be as determined by the person presiding over the meeting.

Article 41. A resolution of a meeting of shareholders requires votes as follows:

(1) in a normal case, a majority of votes of the shareholders present and voting at the meeting is
required, provided that in the case of an equality of votes, the person presiding over the meeting
shall have an additional vote as a casting vote;

(2) in any of the following cases, votes of not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of
votes of shareholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote are required:

(a) selling or transferring the undertaking of the company, in whole or in substantial part, to any
other person,;

(b) purchasing or taking a transfer of the undertaking of any other company or a private
company to be owned by the company; or

(c) concluding, modifying or terminating any contract concerning the granting of a lease of the
company’s undertaking in whole or in substantial part, the entrusting of any other person to
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manage the business of the company, or an amalgamation of the undertaking with any
other person with a view to sharing profits and loss;

amendment to the Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association;
increase or decrease of the registered capital of the Company;
merger of business with other company;

execution of any other matters required by laws to obtain a vote of not less than three-
fourth (3/4) of the total votes of the shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote.

Article 42. Businesses to be duly transacted at an annual general meeting are as follows:

(1) To acknowledge the report of the board of directors on the Company's business operations
during the previous year;

(2) To consider and approve the statement of financial position and the profit and loss account as at
the end of the accounting year of the Company;

3

5
6

To approve the appropriation of profits and dividend payment;

3)
(4) To elect directors in place of those retired by rotation, and to fix remuneration for directors;
(5) To appoint auditors and to fix audit fee; and

(6)

To consider other businesses

CHAPTER VI

SUPERVISORY AND MANAGEMENT IN SUBSIDIARY OPERATING MAIN BUSINESS

The provisions in this chapter are intended to set measures and mechanisms, both direct and indirect,
so that the Company can supervise and manage business operation of a subsidiary operating main business.
This includes monitoring the subsidiaries’ compliance, as if it is their own function, also in accordance with the
Company’s policies, the laws governing public limited companies, the laws governing securities and exchange,
and relevant laws, announcement, regulations, and other related criteria of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, SEC, and SET. The “subsidiary operating main business” means the subsidiary that operates the
business of producing programs for broadcasting on television, radio and online channels, which is the main

business.

Article 43. Any transaction or action of a subsidiary operating main business of the following cases must be
approved by the board of directors' meeting. and/or the Company's shareholders' meeting (as the
case may be)

(1) The Matters that must get approval from a meeting of the board of directors of the Company:

(@)

Appointment or nomination of persons as director or executive in a subsidiary operating
main business for at least in accordance with the proportion of the Company’s shareholding
in the subsidiary, except that this Articles of Association or the corporate governance policy
of the Company's subsidiaries or the board of directors stipulates otherwise, with the
director or executive nominated by the Company having judgments in voting in a meeting of
the board of directors of the subsidiary on matters related to general management and
normal business operations of the subsidiary as deemed appropriate by the director and
executive of the subsidiary for maximum benefits of the Company and/or the subsidiary (as
the case may be), except for the matters requiring approval from the board of directors’
meeting and/or the shareholders' meeting of the Company.

The nominated director or executive in the above paragraph must be a person listed in the
information system of directors and executives of securities issuing companies (White List),
including qualifications, roles, duties and responsibilities, not possessing characteristics
lacking credibility under SEC’s notification prescribing the characteristics lacking credibility
of company directors and executives.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Approval of the payments of annual dividends and interim dividends (if any) of a subsidiary
operating main business, except the case that the subsidiary pays dividends for the whole
year not less than the amount specified in the annual consolidated budget of each
company.

Amendment of the articles of association of a subsidiary operating main business, except
for the amendment of articles of association on significant matters under Article 43 (2) (b)
that must be approved by a meeting of the shareholders of the Company.

Approval of the annual budget of a subsidiary operating main business, except the case
that is specified in the Delegation of Authority which has been approved by the board of
directors' meeting.

Capital increase by issuing capital increase shares of the subsidiary operating main
business and share allotment including registered capital reduction of the subsidiary
operating main business that will change shareholding proportion of the existing
shareholders or that will result in the direct and/or indirect proportion of the vote of the
Company in a meeting of the shareholders of the subsidiary, in any level of the
subsidiaries, decreasing more than ten (10) percent of the total registered capital of the
subsidiary, or the vote of meeting of the shareholders of the subsidiary (as the case may
be), except the case that the business plan or the annual budget of the subsidiary operating
main business which has been approved by the board of directors of the Company.

The items from (f) to (n) are deemed to have materiality that will have significant impact on
financial position and operating results of the subsidiary operating main business. Therefore,
before the subsidiary operating main business will have the board of directors’ meeting, there is
a need to have prior approval in the matters from the board of directors of the Company. This
must be the case when consider the nature of transaction, such as the transaction size and the
person who enter into a transaction as prescribed in the notifications of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board and the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding
acquisition or disposal of assets and/or regarding connected transactions (as the case may be),
mutatis mutandis, the results under the cases that have to be approved by the Board of
Directors. The transactions are as follows:

(f)

The subsidiary operating main business agrees to enter into a transaction with a connected
person of the Company or the subsidiary operating main business or a transaction related
to the acquisition or disposal of assets of the subsidiary operating main business.

Transfer or waiver of a benefit including waiver of claims against the person causing
damage to the subsidiary operating main business.

Sale or transfer of the whole business or important part of the business of subsidiary
operating main business to others.

Purchase or accept the transfer of business from another company to belong to the
subsidiary operating main business;

Entering into, revising, or terminating an agreement related to the lease of the whole
business or important part of the business of the subsidiary operating main business,
delegating others to manage business of the subsidiary operating main business or
merging business of the subsidiary operating main business with other persons, with the
purpose of sharing profit and loss;

Rent or lease of the whole business or assets of the subsidiary operating main business or
significant part thereof;

Borrowing money, lending money, granting credit, guarantee, entering into a binding legal
activity causing an increased financial burden to the subsidiary operating main business, or
providing financial assistance in any other manner to other persons and that is not a normal
business of the subsidiary operating main business, except for loans between the
Company and the subsidiaries operating main business or between subsidiaries within the
Company's group.
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(m) Dissolution of the subsidiary operating main business.

(n) Any other transaction that is not a normal business transaction of the subsidiary operating
main business and is a transaction with significant impact on the subsidiary operating main
business.

(2) The matters that must get approval from a meeting of the shareholders of the Company with the
votes of not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of votes of the shareholders present
and entitled to vote:

(a) A subsidiary operating main business agreeing to enter into a transaction with a connected
person of the Company or the subsidiary operating main business, or a transaction related
to an acquisition or disposal of assets of the subsidiary operating main business. This case
must be approved by a meeting of the shareholders of the Company.

(b) Amendment of the articles of association of the subsidiary operating main business on
matters that may have significant impact on the financial position and operating results of
the subsidiary, including but not limited to amending the articles of association of the
subsidiary operating main business that may affect the vote of the Company in a meeting of
the board of directors of the subsidiary operating main business and/or a meeting of the
shareholders of the subsidiary operating main business or the dividend payment of the
subsidiary operating main business etc.

(c) Dissolution of a subsidiary.

The items from (d) to (n) are deemed to have materiality that will have significant impact on
financial position and operating results of the subsidiary operating main business. Therefore,
before the subsidiary operating main business will have the meeting of the shareholders, there
is a need to have prior approval in the matters from the board of directors of the Company. This
must be the case when consider the nature of transaction, such as the transaction size and the
person who enter into a transaction as prescribed in the notifications of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board and the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding
acquisition or disposal of assets and/or regarding connected transactions (as the case may be),
mutatis mutandis, the results under the cases that have to be approved by the meeting of the
shareholders of the Company. The transactions are as follows:

(d) A subsidiary operating main business agreeing to enter into a transaction with a connected
person of the Company or the subsidiary operating main business or a transaction related
to an acquisition or disposal of assets of the subsidiary operating main business.

(e) Capital increase by issuing capital increase shares of the subsidiary operating main
business and share allotment including registered capital reduction of the subsidiary
operating main business that will change shareholding proportion of the existing
shareholders or that will result in the direct and/or indirect proportion of the vote of the
Company in a meeting of the shareholders of the subsidiary, in any level of the
subsidiaries, decreasing more than the proportion stipulated in the law applicable to the
subsidiary, resulting in the Company having no control over subsidiaries operating main
business.

(f) Transfer or waiver of a benefit including waiver of claims against the person causing
damage to the subsidiary operating main business.

(g) Sale or transfer of the whole business or important part of the business of subsidiary
operating main business to others

(h) Purchase or accept the transfer of business from another company to belong to the
subsidiary operating main business;

(i) Entering into, revising, or terminating an agreement related to the lease of the whole
business or important part of the business of the subsidiary operating main business,
delegating others to manage business of the subsidiary operating main business or
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merging business of the subsidiary operating main business with other persons, with the
purpose of sharing profit and loss;

(i) Rent or lease of the whole business or assets of the subsidiary operating main business or
significant part thereof;

(k) Borrowing money, lending money, granting credit, guarantee, entering into a binding legal
activity causing an increased financial burden to the subsidiary operating main business, or
providing financial assistance in any other manner to other persons and that is not a normal
business of the subsidiary operating main business, except for loans between the
Company and the subsidiaries operating main business or between subsidiaries within the
Company's group.

() Dissolution of the subsidiary operating main business.

(m) Any other transaction that is not a normal business transaction of the subsidiary operating
main business and is a transaction with significant impact on the subsidiary operating main
business.

In the case where the provisions in this chapter require that any transaction or action, which have
significant impact on financial position and operating results of the subsidiary operating main
business, need to have approval from the board of directors of the Company or the meeting of the
shareholders of the Company (as the case may be), therefore, the director of the Company has the
duty to set the board of directors’ meeting of the Company or the meeting of the shareholders’
meeting of the Company (as the case may be) to consider and approve such matter before the
subsidiary operating main business convenes a meeting of its board of directors and/or its
shareholders to consider and approve before entering into a transaction or taking action on such
matter; in this regard, the Company shall disclose the information and comply criteria, conditions,
procedures and methods relating to the matter to be approved are as stipulated in the public limited
companies law, civil and commercial code, securities and exchange law, other relevant laws, and
notifications, regulations and rules of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, mutatis mutandis (Insofar as it is not
conflicting or inconsistent with each other), completely and accurately.

CHAPTER VIII
INCREASE AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL

Article 45. The Company may increase its registered capital by issuing new shares. The issuance of new
shares under paragraph one may be made when:

(1) all shares have been sold and fully paid-up or, in the case where shares have not fully been
sold, the remaining shares must be ones issued in accommodation of convertible debentures or
share warrants;

(2) the issuance has been approved by a resolution of a meeting of shareholders with the votes of
not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of votes of the shareholders present and
entitled to vote; and

(3) registration has been made with the registrar, in pursuance of such resolution, for an alteration
of the registered capital within fourteen (14) days as from the date on which such resolution was
passed by the meeting;

Article 46. The Company may offer for sale, in whole or in part, the additionally issued share and may offere for
sale to existing shareholders in proportion to the number of shares held by each shareholder or may
offer for sale to the public or to other persons in whole or in part, in accordance with the resolution of
the meeting of shareholders.

Article 47. The Company may reduce its registered capital by reducing the value of each share or reducing the
number of shares, upon approval by a resolution of a meeting of shareholders with the votes of not
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less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of votes of the shareholders present at the meeting
and entitled to vote.

The Company shall not reduce the capital to be below one-fourth (1/4) of the total capital. Unless the
case where the company has incurred accumulated loss and, after making compensation for the
accumulated loss respectively by law, such accumulated loss remains, the Company may reduce its
capital to the amount below one-fourth (1/4) of the total capital.

The reduction of the capital to the amount below one-fourth (1/4) of the total capital under the second
paragraph shall be made only upon approval by a resolution of a meeting of shareholders with the
votes of not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total number of votes of the shareholders present at
the meeting and entitled to vote, provided that the company must cause such resolution to be
registered within fourteen (14) days as from the date on which such resolution was passed by the
meeting.

Article 48. Upon the Company intends to reduce its capital, the Company must, in writing, notify its known
creditors of the resolution for such capital reduction within fourteen (14 ) days as from the date on
which such resolution was passed by the meeting of shareholders and specify, in the notification, that
objections may be sent within two (2) months as from the date of receipt of the notification of such
resolution, and the Company shall also publish such resolution in a newspaper ,not less than three
(3) consecutive days, within the said fourteen (14) day time limit.

CHAPTER IX
DIVIDEND AND RESERVE

Article 49. Dividends shall not be paid out of any type of funds other than out of profit. In case the Company still
has accumulated loss, no dividends shall be paid.

Dividends shall be distributed according to the number of shares on an equal basis. Payment of
dividends shall be approved by the shareholders meeting.

In the case where a company has not sold its shares up to the registered number or has registered
an increase of its capital, the company may pay the whole or part of its dividends by issuing new
ordinary shares to shareholders with the approval of a meeting of shareholders.

Article 50. The board of directors may pay interim dividends to shareholders from time to time, upon viewing
that the Company has adequate profit to do so. The payment of interim dividends shall be reported to
the shareholders at the next shareholders meeting.

Payment of dividends shall be made within one (1) month from the date the resolution therefor has
been passed by the shareholders meeting or by the board of directors, as the case maybe. A written
notice of dividend payment shall be sent to the shareholders and also be published in a newspaper
for not less than three (3) consecutive days.

Article 51. The Company must appropriate part of its annual net profits to a reserve fund in an amount of not
less than five (5) percent of the annual net profits with the deduction therefrom the amount
representing the accumulated loss carried forwards (if any) until this reserve fund reaches the
amount of not less than ten (10) percent of the registered capital. In addition to such reserve fund,
the board of directors may propose that the shareholders' meeting pass a resolution to allocate other
reserve funds as it is deemed to be advantage in the operation of the Company.

The Company may, upon approval by a meeting of shareholders, transfer any other reserve funds,
the reserve fund by law and the surplus reserve fund respectively in compensation for its
accumulated loss.
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The Company’s Articles of Association Concerning the Shareholders’ Meeting

CHAPTER X
ACCOUNTING, FINANCES AND AUDITS

Article 52. The accounting period of the Company shall commence on 15t January and end on 315t December of
every year.

Article 54. The board of directors shall arrange for the preparation of the balance sheet or statement of financial
position, and the profit and loss account as at the end of the accounting period and propose them to
the annual general meeting of shareholders for consideration and approval. The board of directors
shall arrange for the auditor to complete the auditing before proposing them to the shareholders
meeting.

Article 55. The board of directors shall send the following documents to the shareholders together with the
notice of the annual general meeting:

(1) A copy of the audited balance sheet or statement of financial position, and the profit and loss
account, together with the auditor's report; and

(2) An annual report of the board of directors, together with supporting documents.

Article 56. The board of directors must make available and keep a register of directors, the minutes of meetings
of the board of directors and the minutes of meetings of shareholders at the principal business office
of the company but the company may entrust any person to keep such documents and register on its
behalf at the locality where the its principal business office is located or in a nearby province,
provided that prior notification thereof shall be given to the registrar pursuant to the laws governing
public limited company.

Article 57. The auditors shall be elected every year at an annual general meeting of shareholders. A retiring
auditor is eligiblefor re-election. The remuneration of the auditors shall be determined as
appropriated in any general meeting.

Article 59. The auditor has the right to prepare written explanations for submission to a meeting of shareholders
and is obligated to be present at every meeting of shareholders at which a balance-sheet, a profit
and loss account and any problem concerning accounts of the company is scheduled to be
considered, for giving shareholders explanations on the auditing, and the company shall also furnish
the auditor with the company’s reports and documents which are to be received by shareholders at
such meeting of shareholders.
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Documents and evidence that attendees have to identity proofing before joining
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders through Electronic Media (E-AGM)
and procedure for proxy granting, registration and voting.

For the One Enterprise Public Company Limited (“the Company”) to have the shareholders meeting
performed with transparency, legitimacy and benefit to all shareholders, it is deemed appropriate to have the
documents or evidential materials showing the status of shareholders or their representatives who are entitled to
participate and vote in the meeting examined and as the standard procedures to be followed further. However, the
Company hereby reserves the rights for making the exception in submitting such documents or evidential materials
showing the status of each shareholder or its representative who is entitled to participate in the meeting as deemed
proper by the Company.

Shareholders or proxies who wish to participate the E-AGM meeting must submit documents confirming
their identity as specified by the Company to the Company by April 25, 2022, when the Company has reviewed the
information in the list of shareholders' entitled to participate the meeting completely. The organizer of meeting via
electronic media will send an individual link for attending the meeting and the system access manual to email which
the shareholders informed the Company in the registration form for attending the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders via Electronic Media (E-AGM) (Enclosure 11) and the individual link will be sent to you 2 days in advance
before the date of the E-AGM meeting.

However, this E-AGM conference is via electronic media meeting only, and there will be no venue for the
meeting, asking for cooperation from shareholders who do not come to the location of the Company's office.

(1) Documents or evidences required before attending the E-AGM

1) In case the shareholders attending the E-AGM by themselves

1.1) Please fill in the registration form for attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via
Electronic Media (E-AGM) (Enclosure 11). Kindly fill your e-mail and mobile phone number clearly in
order to be used for the meeting registration and attach identification document to confirm the
attendance of E-AGM. The individual link to attend the E-AGM including the system access manual will
be sent to the email that the shareholders or proxies have registered with the Company for use in
attending the meeting via electronic meeting (E-AGM)

1.2) Attach a copy of identification document to confirm the attendance of E-AGM as follows:
1.2.1) In the event that the shareholder is an ordinary person:

A copy valid evidence issued by governmental authorities, i.e., the identification card,
governance officer identification card, driver license or passport, including the evidence of
name or last name’s change (if any) and sign the authentication.

1.2.2) For a Juristic Person, in case of shareholder’s representative (director) attend the meeting by
themselves:

1. A copy valid evidence issued by governmental authorities of shareholder’s representative
(director), i.e., the identification card, governance officer identification card, driver license
or passport, including the evidence of name or last name’s change (if any), and sign the
authentication. And

2. A copy of shareholder's Letter of Certification (not over 6 months) certified by authorized
director(s) showing that such authorized director(s) has the authority to act on behalf of
the juristic Person.
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Please submit the registration form for attending the E-AGM and identification document as specified
in item 1.1) and item 1.2) by scanning or taking photos and send them to the Company within
25 April 2022 via e-mail: onee@ojconsultinggroup.com

2) In case the shareholders appointing proxy to the Company’s Independent Director or another
person attend the E-AGM.

In case that a shareholder is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may authorize the Company’s Independent
Director (please use one of the Proxy Form A or Form B or Form C (Custodian) in Enclosure 10 and please
see details of the Independent Directors in Enclosure 4 of invitation to the E-AGM) or another person as their
proxies to attend and vote instead.

2.1)

2.2)

Please fill the registration form for attending the E-AGM (Enclosure No.11). Kindly fill email and Mobile
phone number of shareholder and proxies (other person) clearly in order to be used for the meeting
registration and attach identification document to confirm the attendance of E-AGM. The company will
send the individual link for attending the meeting and the system access manual to the email that the
shareholders or proxies have registered with the Company.

In case the shareholders proxy to the Company’s Independent Directors to attend and vote in the
E-AGM meeting, please fill the name of Independent Director in the meeting registration.

Please completely fill statement and sign in the proxy (Enclosure 10) or the Company’s proxy form, it
has sent to shareholders together with the invitation letter of the E-AGM, with sign by the proxy grantor
and the proxy holder (in case of other persons) Supporting document for the appointment of proxy as
follow:

A) In case a natural person

1. A Proxy Form in 2.2) above which is completely filled and signed by the proxy grantor and the
proxy holder;

2. A copy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority in
1) above certification true copy by the proxy grantor and the proxy holder.

B) In case juristic person

1. A Proxy Form in 2.2) above which is completely filled and signed by such juristic person’s
authorized person and have such juristic person’s company seal affixed (if any) of the proxy
grantor and signed by the proxy holder; and

2. A copy of shareholder’s Letter of the Affidavit or Certification of incorporation (which is issued in
the period of not exceeding 6 months) certified by authorized director(s) showing that such
authorized director (s) signing the proxy has the authority to act on behalf of the juristic person
who is a shareholder; and

3. A copy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority
certified true copy by the proxy grantor; and

4. A copy of valid ID card or passport or other official documents issued by government authority
certified true copy by the proxy holder.

In case Custodian is proxy:

Please enclose evidences of proxy grantor in accordance with B) 2. to B) 4. together with enclose
letter of certification or copy of a permit to certify the permission to act as a Custodian.

For a Non - Thai Nationality or a Juristic Person established under the foreign laws

The documents and evidences will be as required above. In case the original documents or
evidences are not in the English language, the English translation certified true and correct translation
by its authorized director (s) is required.
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2.3) The shareholders may send the registration form for the E-AGM, the identification document and the
completed proxy and send them to the Company within 25 April 2022 via both channels as follows;

1. A copy of documents send by E-mail: onee@ojconsultinggroup.com ; then

2. submit it along with accompanying documents for proxy appointment in the envelope enclosed with
the Notice (No stamp needed) to the Company Secretary, 17t Floor, The One Enterprise Public
Company Limited, No.50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlongtoeinuea,
Wattana, Bangkok 10110

(2) Proxy procedures

Three types of Proxy Forms (Form A, B and C), according to the announcement of Department of Business
Development, Ministry of Commerce, have been delivered to the shareholders. Shareholders (natural person,
institution, or juristic person) who cannot attend this Meeting in person can appoint proxy holders by the following

methods:

1. A proxy is given to any person or the Company’s independent director as desired by such the
shareholder by indicating the name and particulars of such person who is to act as a proxy or making
a mark in front of the independent director's name as stated in the proxy form. Only one person is
selected as a proxy to participate in the meeting.

2. Baht 20 worth of duty stamp is affixed with the date crossed out on the proxy for legal validity. However,
the registered proxy is given with convenience in using the duty stamps prepared the Company with
free of charge.

3. The proxy is requested to have the true and genuine proxy with documentation delivered by mail in

advance to the Company’s address for the attention of : the Company Secretary, 17" Floor, The One
Enterprise Public Company Limited, No.50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke),
Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110. Please send them to the Company not later than 5.00 p.m.
(Bangkok time) on 25 April 2022, so that officer of the Company are given enough time to check the
documentation.

Any shareholder can hold any amount of the Company’s shares, and must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote
at the meeting and shall not split the number of shares to several proxies to vote separately.

(3) Attendance via electronic media meeting (E-AGM)

1)

After the Company receive the document in 1) or 2) above, The Company has checked the list of shareholders
according to the shareholders registration book on the record date and the shareholders and proxies have
confirmed their identity with the Company afterwards within the specified date, the individual link to attend the
E-AGM including the system access manual will be sent to the email that the shareholders or proxies have
registered with the Company for use in attending the shareholders’ meeting via electronic media meeting
(E-AGM) through the system of OJ International Company Limited (As least two day prior to the E-AGM).
Suggested to apply 1 email to 1 shareholders/proxy

Please read the system access manual thoroughly form the email that the Company send to you.

In the case you have not received the individual link to attend the E-AGM including the system access manual
within April 25%, 2022, please immediately contact the OJ International Company Limited by Tel. +669 7087
2591 or +669 4128 4893 or by Email: phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com

In this connection, the registration and vote counting program of the Company can be used with computer,
notebooks, tablets or mobile phones via Web Browser: Internet Explorer, Chrome with 4G internet speed or
basic home internet.

Note: In case of attending the meeting via tablet and mobile phone must install Zoom Cloud Meeting program
before attending the meeting, which can be downloaded as follows:
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iOS System Android System

I.E

https://apps.apple.com/th/app/zoom-cloud- https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=
meetings/id546505307 us.zoom.videomeetings

3) The system will be open to attend the E-AGM meeting 60 minutes in advance before the meeting starts.
However, the meeting will start at the Company time specified from 10:00 a.m. on April 28, 2022 only.

4) Login to the system, the attendees must use the information of the shareholder registration number and the
number of the shareholder's ID card.

5) Voting via E-Voting system, shareholders or proxies can vote for each agenda only by voting "Agree",
"Disagree" or "Abstain". In case of not voting on any agenda, the system will immediately assume that you
vote as "Agree" (using the method count the votes by pouring the votes towards agreeing).

In the event that attendees have any problems in using the E-AGM system, you can contact
OJ International Co., Ltd. by telephone number +669 7087-2591 or +669 4128-4893 or via email
phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com immediately.

Registration attend the meeting after to the commencement of the meeting:

In order to protect the rights and provide most convenience to shareholders who intend to participate
shareholders meeting but may fail to present themselves on time, those shareholders are allow to attend the meeting.
However, the Company would reserve the right to restrict that such shareholders refrain from voting for the agenda
that had been considered and the voting result had already been announced. Such shareholders are able to provide
their votes only on the remaining agendas.

(4) Provisions in casting the vote

4.1) Vote casting and condition

A shareholder shall have votes equal to the number of shares held (or as states in the proxy according to
Clause 40 of the Company’s Articles of Association). One share shall be equal to one vote.

A. Invoting each agenda via electronic media meeting, It will be a vote through the E-Voting system, which
the shareholders or proxies can vote for each agenda only by voting "Agree", "Disagree" or "Abstain",
which the system will open for you to vote on each agenda within the specified time. In case of not voting
on any agenda, the system will immediately assume that you vote as "Agree".
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In case of no shareholder casting Disagree or Abstain (depending on each case), it is considered that
the meeting unanimously resolved to approve any matter as proposed.

Voting in case of the proxy and the shareholders indicate their votes in the proxy form, the Company will
take those voting record as part of vote casting and will be counted in the voting process upon the proxy
receipt.

Any proxy using Form A and B, the proxy holder cannot split the votes in each agenda, whereas the
proxy holder using Form C shall split their votes. This votes splitting can be executed only for the foreign
shareholders who appoint custodians in Thailand as a custodian to attend and vote at the meeting,

The resolution of the shareholders meeting must consist of the following votes (Clause 41 of the
Company’s Articles of Association):

* Innormal case, the majority vote is considered the meeting’s resolution. In case of equality of votes,
the Chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to a final one casting vote.

* In other cases, such as where required by law or the Company’s Articles of Association that the
resolution be made in accordance with the requirements of the law or the Company’s Article of
Association, the shareholders will be informed before casting votes on each agenda. However,
provisions of resolution required for each agenda has been provided for shareholders’
acknowledgement in the attachment herewith. (Enclosure 1) as well.

Additional condition as per Department of Business Development's Announcement dated February 4, 2013
regarding Proxy Granting, Proxy Holders’ Voting Rights, and Delivery of an Invitation to Shareholders’ Meeting
of Public Company

F.

The vote casting of a proxy holder is considered as a vote made on behalf of a proxy grantor. Therefore,
a proxy holder, including those proxy holders who are independent directors that may have conflict of
interest in any agenda, can still cast a vote on that agenda, on behalf of a proxy grantor who has no
conflict of interest.

4.2) Voting procedures on each agenda item

Voting on each agenda item: the shareholders or proxy holders shall be proposed to consider casting votes
on each agenda item. The E-Voting system will be open for he/she to vote within the specified time.

4.3) Counting votes and vote declaration

The counting of the votes of shareholders attending the meeting in person.

A

B.

In counting votes of each agenda, the Company’s staff will announce the ended voting time before
starting the vote counting process by way that the Company will deduct the Disagree or Abstain votes
from the total shares of shareholders or proxy holders attending the meeting and entitled to vote and
declared the voting result to the meeting.

Once the voting has been closed via the E-Voting system, the shareholders or proxy holders will no
longer be able to vote or change votes.

The counting of the votes of proxy holders.

C. The Company will counted the votes according to the proxy form, no matter the proxy holder is in the
meeting room or not.

D. Any agenda in the proxy form does not show the vote casting, such agenda will be counted as “Agree”
no matter the proxy holder is in the meeting room or not, unless the proxy holder expressed the vote
casting in other options.
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Procedures chart for Identity proofing and attend the 2022 AGM via electronic media
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The Company checks for Identity Proofing. use proxy form “Form A” or “Form B” or “From C”
(Custodian) only, the Company will submit to the
l Independent Director who will grant as proxy holder and
vote as specific. In case, shareholder does not specify
voting, Independent Director who is a proxy holder, shall

. have the right to consider and vote on behalf of
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The Company sends the individual link to attend the E-AGM including
the system access manual to the E-mail given to the Company
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Shareholder and Proxy registration to E-AGM System by
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on 28 April 2022
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Procedures chart for Identity proofing and attend the 2022 AGM via electronic media

NN9RIAININA9IUUN / Sending questions in advance
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For shareholders to receive the greatest benefit at the Meeting and fully protect the rights as a shareholder, should you
have any queries that you would like the Company to clarify on any agenda, you can send the questions prior to the Meeting,

in advance to Company Secretary via Email: cs@onee.one , within April 25, 2022.

However, Shareholders and Proxy Holder can also ask according to the meeting agenda by teleconferences through

electronic devices (E-meeting).

ARINNNITANADUAZAIANEATS / Channel to contact and submit document as required

a v v

1) nsal doajuriagsunaudun: Geldlasudmadeanmsidngandssguy wazgianisdnldanussuunisg

dszan E-AGM neluduii 25 Lumnay 2565 lsafnsie 131 laia Buwmefiudunua a0fin lueanianis
79 08.00 1. — 17.00 1. 189 TUT 21 - 22 1B 2565 LAy TuT 25 - 28 LHILY 2565
In the case of shareholders or proxies haven't received an email link to join the meeting and the manual for

accessing the E-AGM meeting system within April 25, 2022, please contact OJ International Co., Ltd. during
business hours: 8:00 a.m. —5:00 p.m. on April 21 - 22, 2022 and April 25 - 28, 2022.

= InsAWY: 097-087-2591 1198 094-128-4893 1138 ™  Telephone: +66 97-087-2591, +66 94-128-4893 or

. ALNA: phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com u E-mail: phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com

2) nsal Hmpdptaasafnilywlunisldanussuy E-AGM llsnfnsa1isum loia Sumesiuduuua a1rin

In case there is a problem in using the E-AGM system, please contact OJ International Co., Ltd.

= TngANN: 097-087-2591, 094-128-4893 138 " Telephone: +66 97-087-2591, +66 94-128-4893 or

. ALUA: phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com = E-mail: phannapas@ojconsultinggroup.com
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Procedures chart for Identity proofing and attend the 2022 AGM via electronic media
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Contacting and sending documents related to the meeting to The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

nalilgwals

151 1m0y 51 Wwwmasined A (N11Tw)
LAUIYNTLTEN 1417 10t 50

AP EY Wil e nUURYININ 21 (alAn)
WINARBILAIEULD 1IATRLN NFUNWY 10110

ALNA: cs@onee.one

TnsAWN: 02 669 9712

Postal Mail Address:

The One Enterprise Public Company Limited
Company secretary, 17" Floor, No. 50,

GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke),
Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110

E-mail: cs@onee.one

Telephone: +66 2 669 9712
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Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2022AGM via Electronic Media (E-AGM)
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You can submit questions in advance of the meeting date, please sending Form for Submitting Question in Advance for the 2022AGM via Electronic Media (E-AGM) to the

company secretary via email: cs@onee.one or send the original documents in the envelope enclosed with the Notice (No stamp needed) to the Company Secretary, 17th Floor,

- /

The One Enterprise Public Company Limited, No.50, GMM Grammy Place, Sukhumvit 21 Road (Asoke), Khlongtoeinuea, Wattana, Bangkok 10110.
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Enclosure 9

The ONE Enterprise Public Company Limited

QR Code Downloading Procedures for Documents of the shareholders' meeting and
the annual registration statement /the 2021 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

The Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., as a securities registrar under the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, has developed a system which allows SET Listed Companies to send to the
shareholders documents regarding the General Meeting of Shareholders and the annual
registration statement /the 2021 Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report) in the form of E-books
accessible through QR Code, thus allows the shareholders to access the information with ease.
The aforementioned documents could be downloaded from the QR Code by following the steps
below.

For iOS Operating System (iOS 11 and above)
1. Turn on the mobile phone camera.
2. Turn the mobile phone camera to the QR Code to scan it.
3. The notification will appear on top of the screen. Click on the notification to access
documents regarding the meeting.
Remark: If the notification does not appear on the mobile phone, the QR Code can be
scanned with other applications such as QR CODE READER, Facebook or
Line.

For Android Operating System
1. Open applications such as QR CODE READER, Facebook or Line.
How to scan the QR Code with Line application
= Open Line application and click on "Add friend"
=  Choose "QR Code"
= Scan the QR Code
2. Scan the QR Code to access documents regarding the meeting.

Enclosure 9 Page 1/1 The One Enterprise Public Company Limited
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Tdsamn
BN 190 3 I5UIMESTWSA 9TA (UASU) annsuanuil
LUURILIHaNaURUNE LUU N 20
Duty Stamp
Proxy Form A Affixed
L [ (Baht20) i
e SRR
Written at
1. dhwdn uh hau A
I/We Date Month Year
g )
Address - anzdeugasiu
: Shareholders’
ArynA Registration No.
Nationality K
2. dudDedures USEN ez 3Y vaueaslnsd 410n (NunTu) (“usEme)
Being a shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited (“the Company”)
Tneieruansfysuauieaus u wazeanidasaspzunulviniy Re
holding the ordinary share in the amount of shares, and eligible for votes
3. veneudunzlyl (naudunzlaties 1 Aw) (@unraneudunzlingsun1sda sz raeL3 N Tmﬂﬁmmxlﬁﬂmmwmﬁﬂﬁdﬂuﬂﬁaﬂ 4)
Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as shown in Enclosure 4)
waanadid Inagalsad / ueanagani 13l / weanysal ARumsng
Mrs. Sauwanee Thairungroj / Ms. Suvabha Charoenying / Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub
O  nssunisaase (Usadanies 1 vinw) 1] l
Independeqt Director (please choose only one person) Age Years
aginuani s FOLA / W
Address Road Sub-District
N8 / 1A Fandn oA Tl reilel 7a
District Province Zip Code
O we/wie/wean a1g i
I\/Irl.l Mrs. /J\/Iiss i Age Years
BUYUIULAUN DU FNLR / AN
Address Road Sub-District
A8 / 1A Faudm soia | seretlel 78
District Province Zip Code
O we/we/wiean a1g) i
Mrl.”/ Mrs. /dJ\/Iiss . Age Years
ALYUIULATN DU RLA / AU
Address Road Sub-District
A8 / LU Fandn i@l ssretlel
District Province Zip Code

4‘ = = ¥ v v 41‘ ¥ =3 v v s vy 4
VDRI TR I Lﬂuﬁ;l]LLVlu“ll@\‘i’ll’]WL@’]L‘Wﬂlﬂl’]‘ﬂﬁ‘:ﬁ‘]!llLL‘Z‘]Z'ﬂ@ﬂL@ﬂd@dﬂzLLuuLLVIu“ﬂ’]WL’W’ﬂuﬂ’]i‘ﬂﬁ“éﬁ‘qm@’]ﬂm Hoauu

1l9eanT 2565 TuTungWaLAN 28 LuEIaW 2565 1981 10.00 W. eNuAaALanNsaing (Zoom) Wianariaudawllluii e wazan1ud

s
As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Thursday,
April 28, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. via electronic media (Zoom) or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

a dl Yar o v o :; v A v v v o
ﬂ@mﬂm*nQi‘umu'au‘w:Vlmni:WWVLﬂTuﬂﬁiﬂ?:ﬁNuu I‘lm’amﬂd’ﬂu’)’]“ﬂ”]wL@W1®ﬂT$WWL®dVJﬂﬂT$ﬂ’li
Any act performed by the proxy at such meeting shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

4 o . 4 ve .
A4TD NNaUAUNY NGl NILNaUAUNY
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder
dl £ o dl Yo o
A7 HNALAUNE AT NILNALAUNE
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder

N8R / Remarks:
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The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the Meeting and shall not split the number of shares to several
proxies to vote separately.

wladeanauduny uuu n ‘V’ﬁﬂﬂi:mﬂﬂiuﬁmmgiﬁ@maﬁ’]f‘i’m AuuaLuumlAenauduns (ud 5) w.A. 2550
Proxy Form A: According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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.- ; Tilsaan
LUURUIABNDURUNG LLUU o pnsnaawi
d o 1 o s o a s s 20 v
(LLUUﬂﬂ'I‘Ir‘i‘Hﬂ‘S']SIﬂﬂiE]'N 9 mwauauwwamaﬂmvmwmﬂm)
Duty Stamp
Proxy Form B Affixed
(Explicit Form) (Baht20) i
o A
LAUN
Written at
dmian uh hau A
I/We Date Month Year
g
Address
= v v
Wwanstaugnau
Shareholders’
Registration No.
ArynA
Nationality
Wugdeures USEm ez Ju 1BwAasIned S1nm (NvnTw) (“U3Ene’)
Being a shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited (“the Company”)
Tnafieduandoyanuounaduson u wazeanidasasazunulivingy Ren
holding the Ordinary share in amount of shares, and eligible for votes
vanaLdunz1f (NauaunzlalNes 1 Aw) (@nnranaudunsldnssunisaaszaeatzsmy lnafiseavidunnndaidannsae 4)
Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as in Enclosure 4)
wirn@adld nagelsad / weanagann w3l / waanysol Ahgundng
Mrs. Sauwanee Thairungroj / Ms. Suvabha Charoenying / Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub
O nssunisdass (TUsadeniives 1 vinw) 878 ol
Independent Director (please choose only one) Age Years
agtnuani nuY FLIA / U9
Address Road Sub—Distrigt -
ANND / L1UR AR soia | seretlel %78
District Province Zip Code
O we/we/wean 81e) i
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
agiiuaan UL FLIA / W99
Address Road Sub-District
2118 / 1A Judn e alsrcel 738
District Province Zip Code
O wie/ue/wean g il
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
agiiuaan s AILIA / UU94
Address Road Sub-District
2118 / 1A Judn e alsrcel
District Province Zip Code

d‘ = B ¥ ¥ v tﬂ' v a ¥ v o v v
AuniaAnlaiasAuLA LD Lﬂu@]LLWH‘H@Q“H’]WL’Q’]LWT’JL‘]J’T]J?Z“]J]NLL@Z@@T]LZQEI\?@Q@ZLLHHLLWH‘]H‘WLW’]I‘H ﬂ’ﬁ‘ﬂiz"ﬁ]ﬂ@’? UEnanu

Uszrand] 2565 ludumngiauiin 28 wimneu 2565 1981 10.00 1. HuAs8idnynsaling (Zoom) visenaziuaenli/ludu wan uazanunausee

As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Thursday,

April 28, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. via electronic media (Zoom) or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelszniAnsuwaungsianisfinEes MuuawuumilsAeNauduns (21U7 5) w.A. 2550 Wi 175

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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v oy
o A o

4. drwidweneuduny Wiuneuduneandasasazuununud i lunnsdseguassll Al
I/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

2989 1 SUNTIUMsLaadNanITAL iU lusanil 2564 uazsunsusauilszantl 2564
Agenda 1 To acknowledge the declaration of the 2021 operational results and the Company’s annual report.
e = i Yo el o o
evillifesaeni@enaspziuniasanidunisudaligneiusunau
This agenda does not require any vote as this is to inform the shareholders for acknowledgement.
Nnszfi2  AnsanaysiRudnsgiusnmsduuazauilsmanuiiingsa srususanthind Fuga o Jufl 31 sunau 2564
Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for the fiscal year ending
31 December 2021.
U ) Widfuneudunzlaniiansanuazassiunudimdnlennilsenismaiiiiuasnas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuweusunzesn@esasnzisununiulsyasmaasdindn 6ol
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wiugne O Liviudnae O sneenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
N5 3 RansanaydnanassRuilsdauniisliflunusrsaimunguansainuanissaniiuauil 2564
Agenda 3 To approve the apportionment as statutory reserve fund from the 2021 operational results.
O WiSunaugungianifansnuazasmdunudindn ldnnilsznismuidiuanaos
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U @ Wuueusunzesn@esasnziuuniuanulszasraasdingn fil
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wiugne O Liviudae O sneenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
e 4 Nansanaylnanaduiiuaadinsunanisaiunuil 2564
Agenda 4 To approve the dividend payment for the 2021 operational results.
O )  dsunensunsianifarsnnuazasiunudawdldyndseniemudl tuguans
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wuseusunzesnidasaspzuuumunnudszasiasdwdn sl
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wingne O Liviugae O sneenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
15:N 5 NATUNBYNALFAIAINTTNNITUNUNTTNNISTATUAINUADDNAINAIUNUIAININSGE 152471 2565
Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the year 2022.
O 0 wisusessunsilansfansnnuazasumdmdnldnndsznisasiiifiuasnog
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelszniAnsuwaungsianisfinEes MuuawuumilsAeNauduns (21U7 5) w.A. 2550 Wi : 2/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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o

O @ Wiuneudunzean@esasnzusununnulsyasmaosiingn fail

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O @ennssuniana 5 viu mudiiaus

Vote for all 5 directors who are propose by the Company.

(1) wgnyna

AgWunIgey

Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun
O wiugne O Liviugae
Agreed Disagreed
(2) wrsilay dalannna
Mr. Piya Sosothikul
O wingne O Liviudae
Agreed Disagreed
(3) u1asE ANFITEIETTN

Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham
L wisne L iuiusae
Agreed Disagreed
(4) weaNysal ARqunswel
Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub
L wingne L iuiusae
Agreed Disagreed
(5) W19AN LR
Mrs.Duangmanee  Sukhum
O wiugne O Liviudae
Agreed Disagreed

al
D JADANLALIN

Abstained

al
D NaLRRIGHN

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

al
D NaLRRIGHEN

Abstained

= a am o : a o ' o w oo
219eN 6 W'Q’]’im’]’ﬂ%uﬂﬂ’]‘iﬂ’]ﬂuﬂﬂﬂﬂ’ﬂﬂLWIuﬂmtﬂ’i’iNﬂ’l’i‘U’i‘i:WlLLﬂZﬂmzﬂ‘i‘iNﬂ’l‘iﬁ!ﬂﬂ’aﬂﬂ’lﬂ‘i'ﬂﬂ 2565

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022.

aa

O o iﬁpﬁumuiumﬁawﬁwmsmqLmzmuﬁme’hwLf%iﬁnﬂﬂi:mimmﬁLﬁumumi
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

O @ Wiuweusunzesndasasnzuuumuaiiulszasraasdngn fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

[ wiugoe O lidiugae [ snaani@es

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

NsE 7 NA1saayNBmMsusnigaautiniuaziuasautinddiusuil 2565

Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year 2022.

aa

O m WSunausumeianifansunuazaasmunudimidn ldnnilsznismuiiiuaunas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Y Vo o al o k7 v o j
O @ Wiuueusunzasnidasaspzuuuaumiulszasfaasdnidn fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iugae O sifiugns O sneani@es
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
widenauduny uwuw 1 : edszmensuimungsianisAnizes fvuauuuwisdesauduny (U7 5) w.A. 2550 wi ;35

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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21951 8 13R9au q (a18)

Agenda 8 Other matters. (if any)

O () WiFuueudunsdavdRansnnuazamaunudmidildynlssnsmaiisiuannns
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U @ WfsuseusunzeoniBesnipzuuumuaniuszasaasdingi fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
3 v @ v al
L e [ lsdwiuae L sneenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

v
g u

. . .
5. measazuuwdesresdiuneudunslunsslan liduldmanssy i lumideneudunsll Wedinieaspzuumdsniu ligndes uazldldidu
nsasazuumdesaesdmidnluguzdteru

Casting of the vote by my/our Proxy for any agenda which is not in accordance with this Proxy Form shall be deemed an incorrect vote
and is not my/our vote as the shareholder.

6. lunsaindmidlildszymnndseasAlunseanid@easazunuluansylaly videszyl3lidaau via lunsaldnUssguinisfiansanvieasufily
.4 a o d o wsa 44 ada o 4 2 oaa oo a yer o dn an
FeclawanuileanFaisvy 3oy santensdifdmsutlanfeuudavaiuiade iaaselsznisle Wiuueudunsiansiaisnnuas
asuAunud i lannlsznisanufiviugunng

If I/we have not indicated my/our vote in any agenda, or the indicated vote is unclear, or if the Meeting considers or resolves any matter
other than those stated above, or if there is any change or amendment to any fact, my/our proxy shall have the right to consider and cast
votes on my/our behalf in all respects as deems appropriate.

o

a dl Yo o o 2 ] dtdl ¥ o [ al tdl ¥ v o o vl A '
Aanislangfuneudunznszinldlunisdszgn Wuusnsdlndfunendunslleandasnnidmidssy lumideneuduns: Wieailewdn

¥ v v 3
drmdldnssineanisznis

Any lawful act performed by my/our proxy in this Meeting, except in the case that my/our Proxy does not cast the votes as specified in the
Proxy Form, shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

d‘ % o d‘ Yar o
A9TD NuaUAUNY NGl NILNAUAUNE
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder

4 v 4 v .
A9TD HNALAUNE ATD NIUNALAUNE
Signature  ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder

RNELUB:
- 9

'
v o v o eLya/.v o

2y =~ = v v = i Il ° 2 Y Yo
1. HOANUNNALRAUNTACADINDLDUNS MN?UN@U"&%VIEZLW&NT’]&ILﬂEI'JLﬂuﬁj‘LﬂqﬂiZﬁNLLﬂtﬂﬂﬂL’&EI\?@\‘iﬂZLLuu 111@’m’]imLLUQLL&Iﬂ’QWHQuHuIVﬂ;{?UN@U

q QU

SUNTUALAUNBLENN1TAIAT LA TR

2. 919RBNFINITNNT ATNNTARBNAINITNNIIITAVFRIRENAINIINNInTUEYAAR

3. lunsdindanseiagiansaunlunisdseguunnndnanssisvy l3dhesiu uavdunzaiunsassyiainla wludssansauuumivdanaudunzuuy 1.

Remarks:

1. The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the meeting and shall not split the number of shares
to several proxies to vote separately.

2. For agenda relating to election of directors, the election may be for the entire group of directors or each individual director.

3. In case the Meeting considers any matters other than those specified above, the shareholder may mark additional statement in the regular
continued list attached to the Proxy Form B.

wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelszniAnsuwaungsianisfinEes MuuawuumilsAeNauduns (21U7 5) w.A. 2550 N ;45
Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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luilszanFAauuURUIRANALDUNS LU A
Regular Continued Proxy Form B

msuau&uwﬂuﬁwxL?Jupj'ﬁﬂﬁwm UFHN 1ABE TU LAUAASINGE AN A (NWITU)
Authorization on Behalf of the Shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited
lunnsuszguandoydfetiu tszand 2565 Iu'j"quﬁmu?wﬁ 28 E1EU 2565 1987 10.00 U, thwdedidnnsaiind (Zoom)
viseTazituaenlu i nan uazanuiiaudan
For the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Thursday, April 28, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. via electronic media (Zoom)
or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

a =
9N L3ag

Agenda Subject:
O () WiuueusunsiavsRiansanuszasmmumudmidnldmnussnnsmuiidiuannns
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ TifuneusunzaanfesainzuuunuaulsyasFaasding il

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O e O liwfiugan O snesnides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
M5 1529 ;
Agenda Subject:

UM suneusimsilavsfiansanuazasbundnidldnndsznnsmudlifuaunas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U@ Wuseusunzesnidasnspsiuunupnuszasascdimd fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iugae O liifiugae O snesnides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
Nnaeh 1309 :
Agenda Subject:

O o WifuneusunsidviAasanuazasmunudwid ldnndssnisanufidiuasnas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Y Vo o = [ v v o d”
O @) ’lmmmuaummnmmmmmuumummﬂ@xmmmqmwlm [N
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O iugae O ldifiugan O snesnides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

fmidaaiusesiimenislulutlszandeuuumidanendunzuny 1 gndestdysaluaziuanuasamnilsznig
|/We certified that the information contained in this Regular Continued Proxy Form B is complete and true.

XGh fuauduny XGh fiusauduns
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
=) v o =) Yo o
AT @u@uauwx AT HTUN’E’JU’QHW:ﬁ
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelszniAnsuwaungsianisfinEes MuuawuumilsAeNauduns (21U7 5) w.A. 2550 N : 5/5

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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ansuanuil
20 U
Duty Stamp
Affixed
(Baht 20)

USEN Ine: JU 1BUINESTWSE 91rTA (UKsU)

BUURUIHINIURAUNE LLUU A
Proxy Form C

. @ ' & o @ o
(wuuildiawznsaidnaiutudamusidssinauazussndlinalasauludssnalnadudsuhnuazguaiiu)

(For foreign shareholders who have custodians in Thailand only)

o A

IR

Written at
2 % o A
PINLAN AUN LR WA
I/We Date Month Year
e
Address wanzidaugiau

Shareholders’

ArynA i Registration No.
Nationality K

Tugnuezdsznaugsiadugfudnuazguaii (Custodian) Wiy
As the Custodian of

= P a o v @ ¢ o o a o
snuﬂugnwmm U580 1AaE U 1B uAaslnsd 41nm (NWTU) (“UTHNA")

Being a shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited (“the Company”)

Tnefatfuansiyanuauisdusm
holding the Ordinary share in amount of

Ju uareanidesasnzuunliiving R
shares, and eligible for

m@u@uﬁuwﬂﬁ’(u’aué’umﬂﬁtﬁm 1 AY) (@A Nnranausuns NI sNNNTa 4z 1R 9L N Tmﬂﬁmmuﬁﬂmmmﬁﬁﬁddmﬁfm 4)

Hereby appoint (May grant proxy to the Company’s Independent Director of which details as in Enclosure 4)

wirn@adld nagelsad / weanagann 1w3edla / waanysol Ahgruning
Mrs. Sauwanee Thairungroj / Ms. Suvabha Charoenying / Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub

O nssunisdass (TUsadenives 1 vinw) 2] l
Independeqt Director (please choose only one) Age Years
agtnuani nuY LA / U9
Address Road Sub-District
aN4 / L Fandn soia ) seretlel UG
District Province Zip Code

O we/we/wiean 81e) i
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
atjrhuiaad ant FOLA / W
Address Road Sub-District
A8 / LU Fandn soia ) seretlel UG
District Province Zip Code

O wie/ue/wean ang il
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss Age Years
agjrhuaad s AILIA / UU94
Address Road Sub-District
ALN8 / 1A d9udn i@l seretlel
District Province Zip Code

d‘ = B ¥ ¥ v tﬂ' v a ¥ v o v v
AuniaAnlaiasAuLA LD Lﬂu@]LLV]u‘ll’ﬂ\T’ﬂ’WWL’Q’WLW'ﬂL‘]H‘]Jﬁ‘t“]j]ZJLL@z@@ﬂLZQEI\TZN@ZLLHHLLWLL‘]HWL@’]IH ﬂ’ﬁ‘ﬂiz"qﬂﬂﬂ UEnanu

v

Usrant] 2565 ludungiauii 28 wieeu 2565 1931 10.00 . HuAeBidnnsating (Zoom) visenariaaewliludu wan uazanunaudae
As only one of my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Thursday,

April 28, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. via electronic media (Zoom) or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelseniAnsuwaungsianisfnEes ivuauuumilsAeNauduns (21u7 5) w.A. 2550 i 1/6

Proxy Form B : According to the Announcement of Department of Business Development Re: Form of Proxy (No. 5) B.E. 2550
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I/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

o ° v & Ao Ao a a P
O HALAUNZATNANUIUNUYNUNAN DA uaziianseandasainzuuuls
Appoint my/our proxy for all shares held and eligible to cast votes.

O seudunzunsdau Ae fuansiny

v aa a =l v
U LR vianseendesasnzuuuls

al
AL

Appoint my/our proxy for partial shares of: Ordinary share shares, eligible for

v oy
o A o

P Y o ™ o = P Y 1
‘m‘wmm@mufauw:M@lmmmumﬂfmmmmﬂ:LLuuLmum‘wm’Lum?ﬁi:ﬁ;umﬂu ANU
I/we appoint my/our proxy to cast vote according to my/our intention in the following manner:

votes

MnsE 1 Sunsrunisuoawamssniiunulusassl 2564 uazfunsusiaanuilsysnil 2564
Agenda 1 To acknowledge the declaration of the 2021 operational results and the Company’s annual report.
mszfﬁmﬁmfaaﬂLﬁmmmuuwfimmﬂLﬂumiLLfi’ﬂﬁQ’ﬁ@ﬁ:ué“uwmu
This agenda does not require any vote as this is to inform the shareholders for acknowledgement.
2158 2 AnsanaysiRwudnsgiusmsduuazsuilsmanuitingsa srususanthind zimgm o Jufi 31 funnaw 2564
Agenda 2 To approve the Statements of Financial Position and the Comprehensive Income Statements for the fiscal year ending
31 December 2021.
O 1ﬁ;§5uu@u§umﬁ§m%ﬁmamnme\m'ﬁumwﬁ’]wﬁﬂﬁ”nnﬂi:mmwﬁLﬁuaumi
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U @ Wiuueusunzesndeasasnzunununiiulszasdaasdinidn fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wiugne O Liviudae O sneenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
Msefi 3 RansanayiiBanassRuilsdaunisliiTlunudsasmunguanaainuamssniiuanuil 2564
Agenda 3 To approve the apportionment as statutory reserve fund from the 2021 operational results.
O ¢ Sl,ﬁpﬁumm‘fumﬁam%ﬁmimﬁLL@:@W?}LW‘}T’]WLf-’i’ﬁ"l,c%’v;ﬂﬂi:mimuﬁLﬁuzwmi
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wuueudunzean@easasnzisumuniiulsyasmaasdinidn Fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O wingas O Taduiugag O wpeenides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
sei 4 Narsanayinaaluiiunadivsunanisaniiuaull 2564
Agenda 4 To approve the dividend payment for the 2021 operational results.
O <  dsuweudunsiananasanuazamiumudhmdnldnnussnsmudlfugunns
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiueudunzesnidasaspzununmuauszassaasdmid il

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iugae O sifiugos O sneeni@eas

Agreed Disagreed Abstained
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Agenda 5 To approve the appointment of directors in place of those who are due to retire by rotation for the year 2022.

NG Wunausumelanifarsanuazassdunudimid ldnnilsznismuiidiuannas

The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.

o o

O @ Tifunausumeaani@asasnzuuunuannlszasdaasdindn Asil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O @ennssuniang 5 viau aadiiaue

Vote for all 5 directors who are propose by the Company.

(1) wanAywa 3§Wum'§n&|
Mr. Tanupol Virunhagarun
O iuse O lsiiiugdng
Agreed Disagreed
(2) wrsilay dalanting
Mr. Piya Sosothikul
O iuse O lsiiiugng
Agreed Disagreed
(3) u1asE ANFITEIETTN

Mr. Rafah Damrongchaitham
L wigne L iuiusae
Agreed Disagreed
(4) wasNysal AR unswe
Mr. Somboon Kitiyansub
L wiugne L ladufusae
Agreed Disagreed
(5) WNANNN fUN
Mrs.Duangmanee  Sukhum
O wiugne L ladufusae
Agreed Disagreed

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

.
[ spaani@es

Abstained

215:N 6 NATUNIBYNANISAIMNUARIADLILNUAMEZNSTNNITLTHNUALANENSTNNNSTAtina AIUSLT| 2565

Agenda 6 To approve the remunerations of the Board of Directors and subcommittees for the year 2022.

aa

O ) Wuueudunsiidvinasunuarasdunudiwdnldmnisznsmaiifiuanmos
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuueusunzesndasasnzuuunumiulszasraasdmidn fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iudne O ifiugns O sneeni@es
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
widenauduny o 1 : FedszmensuimungsianisAnizes fvuauuumisdesauduny (19 5) w.A. 2550 wi : 3/6
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Agenda 7 To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fee for the year 2022.
O ) WSuneusunziidvatasanuazamdunudimdnlannilsznismuiifiugunis
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wiuueudunzeani@esasnzisununnulszasmaosdindn fail
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
0 wiustae O Liviusae O wneanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
N5 8 158987 (A13)
Agenda 8 Other matters. (if any)
O ) Wiuweudunsdavdfansanuazamaunudmidrldynlsensmaiisivannns
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ Wifsuseusunzeeniesaipzuuumuannuszassaasdingi fail

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O Wiugas O Taduiugas O wpeanides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained

5. miasazuuwdesresdiuneudunslunsslan liduldnaissy i lumi@enaudunsil Wedinisasnzuumdeaiu lignaes uazldldidu

=3 ¥ v 24 v
rmmﬂzl,l,uumm%mwmﬂugmzqnwu

Casting of the vote by my/our Proxy for any agenda which is not in accordance with this Proxy Form shall be deemed an incorrect vote
and is not my/our vote as the shareholder.

6. Tunsalndrwdnlildreypannszasdluniseani@asasazunnliuniselald vzeszyldlidniau vze lunsdinns vguiinnsiansunvizenaui lu

o a 4 A wer 2 ada o a4 da o o Y e ¢ _da aa
Fedlauanimiiaannzediszyldidnesiu sannnsiindnisudlaasuudavedinimindediaaslsznisle Wiuneudunsignsniansuiuas

= Py vy & @
ZNNEILLV]L!‘II’TWL@Wiﬂﬂﬂﬂ?zﬂ’]iﬁﬁﬂﬂmuﬂﬂ AT

If I/we have not indicated my/our vote in any agenda, or the indicated vote is unclear, or if the Meeting considers or resolves any matter
other than those stated above, or if there is any change or amendment to any fact, my/our proxy shall have the right to consider and cast
votes on my/our behalf in all respects as deems appropriate.

o

a d’ Vs o o 2 ] dd‘ ¥ o ' a d’ ¥ v o o v A '
Aanislangfuneudunsnszyinldlunistssga uudnsalndfunendunsldeaniBasrmnndamdnssy lunisdenaudun: Wheailoudn

¥ v g °
ﬂqWLﬂqiﬂﬂigqu@dﬂﬂﬂﬁ‘xﬂ’]i‘

Any lawful act performed by my/our proxy in this Meeting, except in the case that my/our Proxy does not cast the votes as specified in the
Proxy Form, shall be deemed as my/our own act in all respects.

4
AT

Signature

2
ANTR

Signature

o . 4 ve .
NuaUAUNY NGl NILNAUAUNY
( ) Proxy Grantor Signature  ( ) Proxy Holder
£ o dl Yo o
HuaUAUNT NG NILNAUAUNE
( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ) Proxy Holder

wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelseniAnsuwaungsianisfnEes ivuauuumilsAeNauduns (21u7 5) w.A. 2550
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RNIEILAB:
I

1.

v

widesavdunzuuy . Sldianiznsdindtedundanngtelunsideududamusiilsanauazusisnslidalabeu (Custodian) lutlsznalng

Yar v Yo z
WudFusnuazauaiulivagy

2. vanguidesuuunianiumivdeneuduns Ae
(1) wildeneusmuaandgiefulisalaifeu (Custodian) Wugandunisasunlumideneudunzuny
(2)  widetuduindauwnlunidessudunzunuldiuaynynlsznaugsia Aalakeu (Custodian)

3. dheduineudunzazsaseuduns Wuneudunziiesnadandudidnlszguuaveenidasasnzuuu ldarunsourisuanauauiuliesy
uaUdunEuas AN LINNNIaIAz LU ARSI

v v v v

4. 919TRANAINTINANG mmmlﬁﬂﬂﬁqmmﬂwﬁmmﬁﬂLﬁ@ﬂﬁmiiumﬂﬂuiwqﬂﬂ@

5. lunsainfionszfiaziansanlunistszguunnndnanssiszylidnesiu fuevdunsanunsassyisdn i luludszardeuuumivdensudunzuuy
A. ATNLLLL

Remarks:

1. This Proxy Form C. is used only in case of shareholder whose name appears in the registration book as a foreign investor and has
appointed a Custodian in Thailand as a custodian.

2. Evidence which must be attached with the Proxy are:
(1) Power of attorney from shareholder assigning the custodian to execute the proxy on his/her behalf.
(2) A document confirming that the custodian has the permission to conduct the custodian business.

3. The shareholder assigning the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the meeting and shall not split the number of
shares to several proxies to vote separately.

4.  For agenda relating to election of directors, the election may be for the entire group of directors or each individual director.

5. In case the Meeting considers any matters other than those specified above, the shareholder may mark additional statement in the regular
continued list attached to the Proxy Form C.

wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelseniAnsuwaungsianisfnEes ivuauuumilsAeNauduns (21u7 5) w.A. 2550 N : 5/6
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TudlszafAanuuNNAaNALRUNE WU A
Regular Continued Proxy Form C

msuau&uwﬂuﬁwxL?Jupj'ﬁﬂﬁwm UFHN 1ABS U LAULAASINGE AN A (NWITU)
Authorization on Behalf of the Shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited
lunnsuszguandoydfetiu tszand 2565 Iu'j"quﬁmu?wﬁ 28 wmEU 2565 1987 10.00 1. thwdedisnnsaiind (Zoom)
viseTiazituaenliludi nan uazanuiiaudan
For the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Thursday, April 28, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. via electronic media (Zoom)
or at any adjournment thereof to any other date, time and venue.

a =
9N L3ag

Agenda Subject:
O () WiuueusunsiavsRiansanuszasmmumudmidnldmnussnnsmuiidiuannns
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
O @ TifuneusunzaanfesainzuuunuaulsyasFaasding il

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O e O liwfiugan O snesnides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
M5 1529 ;
Agenda Subject:

UM  suneusimsilavsfiansanuazasiundnidldnndsznnsmudlifuaunas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
U@ Wuseusunzesnidasnspsiuunupnuszasascdimd fil

The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.

O iugae O liifiugae O snesnides
Agreed Disagreed Abstained
Nnaeh 1309 :
Agenda Subject:

O o WifuneusunsidviAasanuazasmunudwid ldnndssnisanufidiuasnas
The proxy holder shall vote independently as to his/her consideration.
Y Vo o = [ v v o :
O @) ’lmmmuaummnmmmmmuumummﬂ@xmmmqmwlm [
The proxy holder shall vote according to my / our following instruction.
O iugae O ldifiugan O snesnides

Agreed Disagreed Abstained

fmidaaiusasiimemslulutlszardeuuumidanendunzuny 1 gndestdysaluaziuanuasamnilsznig
|/We certified that the information contained in this Regular Continued Proxy Form B is complete and true.

XGh fuauduny XGh fiusauduns
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
=) v o =) Yo o
AT @u@uauwx AT HTUN’E’JU’QHW:ﬁ
Signature ( ) Proxy Grantor Signature ( ) Proxy Holder
wilidenauduny wuu 2 : FelseniAnsuwaungsianisfnEes ivuauuumilsAeNauduns (21u7 5) w.A. 2550 91N : 6/6
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U8 - 5U BuInoSTsd $in (r o) Registration form for attending the 2022 AGM via Electronic Media (E-AGM)
=~ A
WUNciiiiii, LABDU. e Wbl
Date Month Year

(D EISJHWL%H ............................................................. WNWﬂlﬁﬂlﬁ@liﬂig%1%u/ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂlﬁuﬂ1ﬂ .................................................
I/We, Identification Card/Passport number
(21315 211 P mmamﬁ ........................ DU s RNTLS VTG o K TR
Nationality Residing at No. Road Sub district
° o o @ A
DUDD/AUR.c.eeeiereeeceerec et N 2 101 DU UTUPPUTRORRORN i?iﬁlllli‘ldmﬂ ......................................
District Province Postal Code

1< a o o <} 4 d o w
@) Wudtequuss U5HN oz M1 0UART Insd 1R (W)
Being a shareholder of The One Enterprise Public Company Limited

FA
@

=~ YA 9 A g 2 Y
LAUNSIVIUNDD T U Iﬂﬂﬂﬂ?jui’)ll‘l/lﬁﬁu .................................................................. i

Shareholders’ Registration No. Holding the total amount of shares

=)

S ' § ag A o o ) o
ﬂigﬁ\iﬂﬂ3i'Jll‘IJE3Gljlllmgﬁﬂﬂg!LuuNWNa’t‘)i‘)mﬂﬂﬁ@uﬂﬁ ﬁ'l?’iﬁﬂﬂ]i‘l.]i%ﬁqiuﬁ] @éﬂﬂﬁ:ﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬁj 2565

I would like to participate the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders via electronic media (E-AGM)

9 1 Y
D mimﬂimgumamm

Self-Attending
[l ousume 1 (omnaanaa ). oo, W3 0152 an a6
Proxy to attend the meeting.

(3) Yoyalumsdadadsmainsauilszagw

Please send the Link to join the meeting by below email

DD (QUIEEEERT)
E-Mail Please fil in the blank.
TNTIIRTODD. ..o GIEEEEAN)
Mobile Number Please fil in the blank.

(4) TaduenasioouuAIAY MUAINdINIAE 6. TBNTINT sy MeluIun 25 ey 2565

Please submit the required document per an Enclosure 6. by 25 April 2022

(5) o laFumstududau U5 wwdadadedmainiulszguuasimanswalszgua lddwanninlaszy 13

Once you have verified, the company will send the Link to join the meeting via email
@ EY Y Y @ Y Y @ Y o @ Y 1
(6) Tuiuilszgudnoduazdousioy muiinddooiu vazaviinslszmru 13 dmsumsdislsz g E-AGM

Please prepare your Account Number and your Identification Card Number for log in the E-AGM meeting.

a3%0/ Signed.....ceeerieiiiereee e I?jl:ﬁ aﬁu/ Shareholder
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